DIRECTORS' REPORT

The Members,
Indian Clearing Corporation Limited

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting their eighth Annual Report and Audited
Accounts for the financial year ended 31s* March, 2015,

. Financial Results:
The financial results for the year ended 31st March, 2015 are as follows:

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars Year Ended Year Ended March
March 31, 2015 31,2014

A.Income

Income from Operations 1,773 813
Income from Investments & Deposits 7,249 8,296
Other Income 19 1
Total 9,041 9,110
B. Expenditure

Employee Benefits Expenses 434 316
Other Operating Expenses 1259 1232
Depreciation and Amortisation 97 27
Finance Cost- Interest 12 16
Total 1802 1591
C. Profit before tax (PBT) 7239 7519
D. Provision for taxes 896 1470

E. Profit After Tax (PAT) 6343 6049

Earnings per Share 0.17 0.17
L

i, Total Income of ICCL decreased by Rs. 69 lakhs to Rs. 9,041 lakhs for the year ended

March 31, 2015, from Rs. 9,110 lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2014, on Y-0-Y
hasis.

ii. The Total Expenses of ICCL increased by Rs. 211 Lakhs to Rs. 1,802 lakhs for the year

ended March 31, 2015 compared to Rs. 1,591 Lakhs for the year ended March 31,
2014,

{ii. The profit before tax decreased by Rs. 280 Lakhs to Rs. 7,239 lakhs for the year ended,
March 31, 2015 compared to Rs. 7,519 Lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2014.



iv. The net profit after tax increased by Rs. 294 Lakhs to Rs. 6,343 Lakhs for the Year
ended March 31, 2015 from Rs. 6,049 Lakhs for the year ended March 31, 2014.

. Performance & Operations:

The Company has been providing Clearing & Settlement services for all the segments of
BSE viz. Equity Cash, Equity Derivatives, Currency Derivatives, Interest Rate Futures,
Offer for Sale, SME, Debt Segment, Securities Lending & Borrowing and Mutual Fund.

[CCL has ceased providing Clearing & Settlement services for Currency Derivatives

Segment of United Stock Exchange of India Ltd {USE) as the Hon'ble High Court has
approved merger of USE with BSE.

During the period under review, the Company has introduced many new features and

facilities to make the clearing & settlement system more efficient and user friendly for
market participants in various segments.

New Initiatives / Products Proposed:

i, Direct Payment Facility for MF funds pay-out (direct pay-out of funds to client’s
account) in BSE STAR Mutual Fund Segment.

ii. Facility of E-FDR - Electronic confirmation of Fixed Deposit Receipts by Banks
towards collateral requirements.

{ii.  Facility of fungible BGs and FDRs across all segments of BSE.

iy.  Early pay-in without EPN (client details) files.

Facilities / Products Recently Introduced:

i.  Facility for non demat transactions in BSE STAR Mutual Fund Segment.
ii.  Facility for adjustment of Liquid Mutual Fund redemption pay-out against
settlement obligation of Clearing Members in Equity Cash Segment.

iii.  Deposit of Cash Equivalent Collateral in case of retail investor category for OFS
(Offer for Sale) Segment.

iv.  Auto DO and DPC facility for SLB and ITP Segments.

BSE inks MoU with BNY Mellon:

BSE has signed a Memorandum of Understanding (MoU) with The Bank of New York

Mellon, a New York based banking corporation. This MoU was signed in New York on 260
September 2014.

As per this MoU, BNY Mellon will work with 1CCL to provide collateral management

solutions to enahle investors to provide collateral which is traded outside of India to
BSE/ICCL. '

The MOU would allow for acceptance of "AAA" rated foreign sovereign bonds, as
approved by the regulators RBI and SEBI, as coliateral for trades done on BSE. This
enablement is expected to increase the ease for foreign investors operating in Indian
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market and is expected to reduce their costs of collateral and trading in Indian markets
significantly over a period of time.

With the signing of this MOU, BSE/ICCL and BNY Mellon aim to enhance the trading

experience for the foreign institutional and retail investors and bring Indian practices in
line with the best in the world.

3. Dividend

Your Directors have recommended dividend on Equity shares at the rate of Rs. 0.13 per
equity share of face value of Re. 1/- each fully paid-up for the financial year ended 315t
March, 2015 aggregating to Rs. 5725 lakhs (previous year Rs. 3015 lakhs) subject to the
approval of shareholders at the Eighth Annual General Meeting,

The dividend, if declared at the ensuing Annual General Meeting, will be paid to those

members whose names appear in the Register of Members on June 22, 2015, being
record date.

The total dividend amount is Rs. 4,757 lakhs. The total corporate tax on dividend

thereon is Rs. 968 lakhs. However, the dividend will be tax free in the hands of
sharehoiders.

4, Securities Contracts (Regulation)(Stock Exchanges And Clearing Corporations)
Regulations, 2012:

Pursuant to the SECC Regulation and Circular No. CIR/MRD/DSA/33/2012 dated 13t
December 2012 on Procedural norms on Recognition, Ownership and Governance for
Stock Exchanges and Clearing Corporations, SEBI has vide letter dated
MRD/DRMNP/28675/2014 dated September 29, 2014 granted recognition to ICCL to

act as a Clearing Corporation for a period of one year subject to compliance with the
following:

a. That ICCL shall take immediate steps to rectify the deficiencies pointed out in the
systems audit.

h, That ICCL shall have Business Continuity Plan and Disaster Recovery site as
prescribed by SEBL

c. That ICCL shall adhere to the undertakings provided in the application and
through subsequent submissions, and

d. That 1CCL shall comply with the rules, regulations, guidelines instructions and
conditions as may be prescribed by SEBI from time to time.

JCCL has complied with the aforesaid conditions and the status of compliance of
observations is as follows:

a. ICCL has rectified the deficiencies observed in the Systems Audit Report for the

calendar year 2013, The status of implementation was submitted to SEBI on
December 29, 2014.
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b. ICCL has developed a policy framework for Business Continuity in the event
of emergencies. The Business Continuity Plan is operational and a recent exercise

to test the preparedness was carried out successfully from the Disaster Recovery
(DR)] site based at Hyderabad.

5. Risk and Internal Adequacy

Your Company has an elaborate Risk Management procedure, which is based on three
pillars: Business Risk Assessment, Operational Controls Assessment and Policy
Compliance processes. Major risks identified by the businesses and functions are

systematically addressed through mitigating actions on a continuing basis. These are
discussed with the Risk Management Committee.

The Company's internal control systems are commensurate with the nature of its
business and the size and complexity of its operations. These are routinely tested.
Significant audit observations and follow up actions thereon are reported to the Audit
Committee. The Risk Management / Audit Committee reviews adequacy and
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control enviromment and monitors the
implementation of audit recommendations, including those relating to strengthening of
the Company’s risk management policies and systems.

Your Company manages cash and cash flow processes assiduously, invol‘ving all parts of

the business. The Company’s low debt equity ratio provides ample scope for gearing the
Balance Sheet, should the need arise.

BSE has launched Self Trade Prevention Check (STPC) in the Equity Segment:

BSE has successfully launched its new functionality Self-trade prevention check (STPC).

The Self-trade prevention check (STPC) functionality was introduced with the purpose of
preventing matching between a buy and a sell order entered in the same order book by a

member for the same client code originating from same or different trading terminals of
the member.

This new functionality is yet another step taken by the BSE to raise itself to the
International standards and bring in more transparency.

Implementation of SEBI circular no. CIR/MRD/DRMNP/25/2014, dated August 27,
2014 on Core Settlement Guarantee Fund, Default Waterfall and Stress Test

SEBI vide its circular no, CIR/MRD/DRMNP/25/2014 dated August 27, 2014 has issued

norms related to Core Settlement Guarantee Fund (Core SGF), Stress Testing and Default
Procedures.

Core SGF

The creation of the Core SGF is aimed at mitigating the risks faced by overall markets due
to defaults by certain entities and also includes setting default waterfall marks to limit
the liability of non-defaulting entities. Stress testing norms require that, on a monthly
basis, the Clearing Corporation perform comprehensive analysis of stress testing

scenarios to ensure necessary default protection measures in light of prevalent market
conditions. .



Minimum Required Corpus

Stress tests would need to be conducted to determine the Minimum Required Corpus of
Core SGF, which would be needed to be set aside from the overall Settlement Guarantee
Fund of the Clearing Corporation. The Core SGF, against which no exposure is given, is
readily and unconditionally available to meet settlement obligations of clearing
corporation in case of clearing members failing to honour settlement obligation.

Contributions to the Core SGF

Contributions to the Core SGF would come from the Clearing Corporation, Stock Exchange
and the Clearing Members. Any penalties levied by the Clearing Corporation (as per
Regulation 34 of SECC Regulations) shall be credited to the Core SGF Corpus. interest on
cash contribution to Core SGF shall also accrue to the Core SGF and pro-rate attributed to
the contributors in proportion to their cash contribution. The Defaulter's Committee /
SGF utilisation committee of the Clearing Corporation shall manage the Core SGF.

Exposure towards CCP: As per SEBI Circular dated August 27, 2014, a clearing
corporation’s contribution to Core SGF shall be atleast 50% of the Minimum Required
Corpus (“MRC”). A stock exchange’s contribution should be at least 25% of the MRC and
a clearing member’s contribution cannot exceed 25% of the MRC, ICCL has decided to
currently keep the Clearing Members’ contribution to Default Fund as “NiL”

Limited Liability: ICCL has limited the liability for non-defaulting members subject to a
maximum cap of INR 1 million

Recovery & Resolution: INR 1 Billion is kept separately for covering operational cost for
1 year, legal cost, regulatory cost, and other liahilities.

1CCL has implemented the circular w.e.f. December 1, 2014. Presently contribution to the
Core SGF is made by the Exchange (25%) and ICCL (75%) for Equity Cash, Equity
Derivatives and Currency Derivatives Segments and 100% by ICCL for the Debt Segment.

. Corporate Governance

Your Company is renowned for exemplary governance standards since inception and
continues to lay a strong emphasis on transparency, accountability and integrity.

A separate report on Corporate Governance is provided in the Annual Report, together
with a Certificate from the Auditors of the Company regarding compliance of conditions
of Corporate Governance as stipulated under Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement with the
Stock Exchange(s). A Certificate of the CEO of the Company in terms of sub-clause(v) of
Clause 49 of Listing Agreement, inter alia, confirming the correctness of the financial

statements, adequacy of the internal control measures and reporting of matters to the
Audit Committee, is also annexed.

Your Company is committed to embrace the new law in letter and spirit.

During the year, Secretarial Audit was carried out. The detailed report on the same forms
part of the Annual Report.
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7. Beard of Directors

Ms. Maya Swaminathan Sinha and Mr. G. Sethu are Public Interest Directors of ICCL. Mr.
Ashishkumar Chauhan and Mr. Nehal Vora are the Shareholder Directors of 1CCL,
representing BSE Ltd. Mr. K. Kumar is the Managing Director & CEO of the Company.

Mr. Arun Ramanathan, Mr. G. Anantharaman and Mr. M.B.N. Rao, Directors, ceased fo
be the Director of the Company with effect from November 20, 2014.

The Board places on record its deep sense of appreciation for the outstanding

contribution made by Mr, Arun Ramanathan, Mr. G. Anantharaman and Mr. M.B.N. Rao,
Directors to the Company.

[n accordance with Article 131 of the Articles of Association of the Company read with
provisions of Companies Act, 1956 and applicable provisions of Companies Act, 2013,
Mr. Nehal Vora retires by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being

eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. Your Board recommends the appointment
of Mr. Nehal Vora as Director of the Company.

8. Auditors

Subject to the provisions of Section 139 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, M/s S.
Panse & Co., Chartered Accountants, is proposed to be appointed as the Statutory Auditor
of the Company to hold office from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting up to
the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting to audit the accounts of the Company

for the financial year 2014-2015 at a remuneration of Rs.4 Lakhs per annum plus out of
pocket expenses and taxes.

Auditors Report

The Auditors’ Report on the financial statements of the company for financial year ended
31st March, 2015 does not contain any reservation, qualification or adverse remark.

9. 1CCL has taken Counterparty Default Insurance for INR 370.8 Crore.

ICCIL remains committed to the safety of investors and members and to further add to this
security, ICCL has subscribed to a unique Insurance Policy for INR 370.8 Crore across all
segments. The objective of the Policy is to protect 1CCL against counterparty defaults, and
add a further capital cushion to the ICCL networth making the resources of the non-
defaulting members even safer. The policy also adds to the ability of ICCL to absorb higher
losses before any resources of the non-defaulting members are put at risk.

ICCL provides full novation and has the responsibility of guaranteeing contractual
performance by playing the role of a central counterparty for all trades on BSE, thereby
eliminating counterparty risk for the members. In essence, it splits the original contract
between the initiating counterparties into two new contracts; one each between JCCL and
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the initiating counterparties. ICCL has put in place a risk management framework to
mitigate the risk it undertakes in its capacity as a Clearing Corporation.

However, as a second line of defence to the margining and risk management systems,
ICCL has subscribed to the Insurance policy. In the case of loss arising out of defaults, the
capital of Clearing Corporation and its non-defaulting members would be at risk, in
accordance with the default waterfall. The magnitude of potential loss due to default a
clearing corporation can undertake without affecting the capital of non-defaulting
members is contingent upon the networth of the Clearing Corporation and additional

capital cushions, which insulate the default loss and the non-defaulting members’
resources.

1CCL, with its networth of over INR 450 Crore, which is nearly 3 times its default fund
requirements, is well capitalized and instills a high level of confidence in its members and
investors of the ability of ICCL to handle extreme loss situations. The additional capital
cushion of INR 370.8 Crore, provided by the Insurance cover, along with the networth

covers over 5 times the default fund requirement of ICCL and further increases the safety
for domestic and international participants alike.

10.India Ratings & Research assigned rating of IND AAA’; Outlock Stable and CARE
assigned ‘CARE AAA(IS) rating to ICCL

[CCL continues to remain the only clearing corporation in India to be granted “AAA"

rating by two rating agencies, India Ratings Ltd. (Indian arm of Fitch Ratings) and Care
Ratings Ltd.

11.I1CCL has applied for ESMA recognition under the European Market Infrastructure
Regulations

ICCL has applied to the European Securities and Market Authority (ESMA) for recognition
as a TC-CCP under the European Market Infrastructure Regulations (EMIR). In October
2014, ICCL received a Notification of Completeness of Application from ESMA.

12.1CCL becomes the first entity to be assigned LEI by CCIL

On November 18, 2014 ICCL became the first company to apply for, and receive Pre-
Legal Entity Identifier (“LEI") from Clearing Corporation of India Limited (“CCIL"}.

Due to the vulnerabilities of the global financial system, the importance of creating a
common system of identifiers was keenly felt by the Financial Stability Board (“FSB"),
10SCO, and G-20 finance ministers and leaders. The LEI helps connect to key reference
information that enables clear and unique identification of companies participating in
global financial markets. The LEI is based on the international ISO 17442 standard and
the current guidelines of the FSB. Every entity which registers for a LEI is subject to

reliable, but flexible operational principles and standards for the origination and
continued maintenance of a LEL

On January 6, 2014, RBI identified CCIL as the Local Operating Unit (“LOU"} for issuing

globally compatible LEIs in India. The LElis a unique 20 digit, alpha-numeric reference
code.
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During the year under review, the Company has not accepted/renewed any Deposits from
the public.

14.Particulars of employees:

15.

16.

17.

During the year under review, the compensation given to the employees covered under
section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the compensation given to the key
management personnel of the Company pursuant to Regulation 27(5) of Securities

Contract (Regulation) (Stock Exchanges and Clearing Corporations) Regulations, 2012,
are given in attached Annexure to the Report.

Conservation of energy, technology absorption and Foreign Exchange earnings
and outgo

A] Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption:

Considering the nature of operations of the Company, your Directors have nothing to report
pursuant to Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013.

B] Foreign Exchange Earning and Qutgo:

The particulars of foreign exchange earnings and outgo during the year under review are
furnished here under

Foreign Exchange Earning: Nil (Previous Year NIL)

Foreign Exchange Outgo: Rs. 36 lakhs (Previcus Year Rs. 23 lakhs)

Membership

During the FY 2014 - 15, ICCL received 75 applications from Clearing Members (CMs).
Of this, 46 applications were for the Equity Cash Segment, 9 for Equity Derivatives
Segment, 19 for Currency Derivatives Segment and 1 application was for the New Debt
Segment of BSE. As on March 31, 2015 total Clearing Members with ICCL operating in
different Segments of BSE were 1575. Of this 1353 were in the Equity Cash Segment,
135 in the Equity Derivatives Segment, 55 in the Currency Derivatives Segment and 32
in the New Debt Segment of BSE. Total applications received for surrender / canceilation
of Clearing Membership with ICCL across different Segments of BSE were 39. Of these 30
were for the Equity Cash Segment, 8 for the Equity Derivatives Segment and 1 for the
New Debt Segment of BSE. As on March 31, 2015, 35 applications received for surrender
/ cancellation had been approved by SEBI / Exchange / Clearing Corporation. Three
applications were under process / pending with SEBL

Human Resource

ICCL has aligned the compensation packages of Management and laid down HR policies
to make benefits and compensation more transparent and employee-friendly.

Also, the organizational structure of ICCL has undergone significant restructuring to

enhance accountability and efficiency with a view to aligning performance management
and reward strategies.
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In compliance with the requirements of Section 217 (24) of the Companies Act, 1956 read
with the Companies (Particulars of Employees) Rules, 1975 as amended and Securities
Contracts {Regulations) (Stock Exchanges and Clearing Corporations) Regulations, 2012,
a statement containing details of employees is annexed to the Annual Report.

As of March 31, 2015 ICCL had 36 employees.
18. The Companies Act
Disclosure in Directors Report as per Companies Act 2013
I. Extract Annual Return (sec 92)

The details forming part of the extract of the Annual Return in form MGT 9 is annexed
herewith.

1I. Number of Board Meetings

During the year, five Board Meetings were convened and held on 6t May, 2014, 17%
July, 2014, 10% November, 2014, 5% February, 2015 and 27 February 2015.

lil. Directors’ Responsibility Statement

Pursuant to sub-section (5) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 with respect to the
Directors’ Responsibility Statement, it is hereby confirmed:-

a. inthepreparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had
been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

b. the directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently
and made judgments and estimates that are reasonabie and prudent so as to give
a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial
year and of the profit and loss of the company for that period;

¢. thedirectors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding

the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other

irregularities;

the directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; and

e. the directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the
company and that such internal financial controls are adequate and were effective.

f. the directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the

provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and
operating effectively.

IV. Declarations by Independent Directors

All Public Interest Directors / Independent Directors have given declarations that they

meet the criteria of independence as laid down in Section 149(6) of the Companies Act,
2013.

V. Company's policy on Directors’ appointment and remuneration
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Your Company has re-constituted and changed the nomenclature of its existing

“‘Compensation Committee” to “Nomination and Remuneration/Compensation
Committee”.

The constitution of the committee is disclosed In the Corporate Governance Report
which forms a part of the Annual Report.

The Board has on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration

Committee framed a policy for selection and appointment of Directors, Senior
Management and their remuneration.

V1. Comment on Secretarial Audit Report

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and The
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the
Company has appointed Messrs Mehta & Mehta, a firm of Company Secretaries in
Practice to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the Company. The Secretarial Audit
Report is annexed herewith. As per the provisions of Section 134(3)(f}(ii) of the
Companies Act, 2013 the Secretarial Audit Report for the financial Year ended 31st
March, 2015 has reported the following observation:

“As per clause (ii)(b) of Part A of Schedule Il of the SECCR, Public interest directors are
required to meet separately, at least once in six months to exchange views on critical issues,
however, there was only one such meeting held during the year as on 14 July 2014 and
there was no such meting within six months from that day”

The Management response with regard to the above observation is as follows:

“Public Interest Directors (PID) meeting is required to be convened at least once every
year as per the Companies Act, 2013 and as per SECC Regulations, 2012 PID meetings are
to be held at least once in 6 months. A meeting of the PIDs for the period June 2014 to

December 2014 was held on July 14, 2014 the next meeting of the Committee will be
convened before June 30, 2015.”

VIL. Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments by the Company Under
Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013

A detailed disclosure of the particulars relating to Loans and investments by the
company as per Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with The Companies

(Meetings of the Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 is given in the notes to the Financial
Statements.

V1L Particulars of Contracts or Arrangements with Related Parties referred to in
sub-section (1) of Section 188

All related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on
an arm’s length basis and were in the ordinary course of business. There are no
materially significant related party transactions made by the Company with Directors,
Key Managerial Personnel or other designated persons which may have a potential
conflict with the interest of the Company at large. A detailed disclosure of these
transactions with the Related Parties is annexed with the Annual Report.
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IX. Material Changes And Commitments Affecting The Financial Position of the
Company

There have been no material changes and commitments affecting the financial position
of the company which have occurred between the end of the financial year of the
Company to which the financial statements relate and the date of the report.

¥. Trading Technology upgrade

New DR & Consolidation of Data Centers

To be in line with best practices with regards to risk mitigation, ICCL has setup the new
DR (Disaster Recovery) site to a different seismic zone at Hyderabad.

BSE/ICCL conducted Jive trading for two consecutive days successfully from new DR
center.,

¥1. Annual Evaluation of The Performance of The Board

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 49 of the Listing

Agreement, the Board has an evaluation Policy of its own performance and that of the
Board and its Committees thereof.

XIL. Change In The Nature Of Business

Your Company has not undergone any changes in the nature of the business during the
Financial Year.

YIIL Details of Directors or Key Managerial Personnel who were appointed or
have resigned during the year pursuant to Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014:

Cessation

Mr. Arun Ramanathan, Mr. G.Anantharaman & Mr. M.B.N. Rao, Directors had stepped
down from the Board with effect from 20/11/2014. Board records its deep appreciation

of the valuable services rendered by them during their long association with the
Company.

Retirement by Rotation

In accordance with the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 and the Company’s Articles
of Association Mr. Nehal Vora shall retire by rotation in this Annual General Meeting and
being eligible for re-appointment, offers himself for re-appointment.

Appointment

Ms. Maya Swaminathan Sinha was appointed as a Director with effect from 16/01/2015.
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Key Managerial Personnel

Mr. K. Kumar, Managing Director & CEQ, Mr. Tushar Ambani, Chief Operating Officer,
Mr. Piyush Chaurasia, Chief Risk Officer and Ms. Manisha Thakur, Chief Regulatory
Officer are the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company pursuant to the Companies

Act, 2013 and the Securities Contracts (Regulations) (Stock Exchanges and Clearing
Corporations) Regulations, 2012.

XIV. Companies which have become or ceased to be its subsidiaries, joint ventures
or associate companies during the year: Nil

XV. Deposits

The Company has not accepted any public deposits during the financial year ended on
31st March, 2015 and as such, no amount on account of principal or interest on public
deposits was outstanding as on the date of the balance sheet.

XVL Details of Deposits not in compliance with the requirements of the Act

Since the Company has not accepted any deposits during the financial year ended on
31st March, 2015, there has been no non-compliance with the requirements of the Act.

XVIL Significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or
tribunals impacting the going concern status and company's operations In future

There have been no significant and material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts

or Tribunals impacting the going Concern status and your company’s Operations in
Future.

XVIII. Changes in Share Capital

During the year there has been no change in the Company’s shareholding.

XIX. Audit Committee

The Board has a well-defined Audit Committee the details of which have been given in
the Corporate Governance Report.

XX. Report on performance of subsidiaries, associates companies and joint
ventures: Not applicable

XXl1. Vigil Mechanism

The Company has a Whistle Blower Policy to deal with instances of fraud and
mismanagement, if any.

XXIL Disclosures if MD/WTD is receiving remuneration or commission from a
holding company or subsidiary company: Ni]

XXIIl.  DISCLOSURE ABOUT ESOP AND SWEAT EQUITY SHARE: Nil
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19.

20.

XX1V. ORDER OF COURT: Nil

XXV, DETAILS OF EMPLOYEES DRAWING SALARY ABOVE PRESCRIBED LIMITS

in compliance with the requirements of Rule 5(2) of The Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and Securities Contracts
(Regulations) (Stock Exchanges and Clearing Corporations) Regulations, 2012, a
statement containing details of employees is annexed.

XXV]. Particulars relating to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace
(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013

Your Company has always believed in providing a safe and harassment free workplace
for every individual working in {CCL’s premises through various interventions and
practices. The Company always endeavours to create and provide an environment that
is free from discrimination and harassment including sexual harassment.

The Company has adopted a policy on Prevention of Sexual Harassment at Workplace
which aims at prevention of harassment of employees and lays down the guidelines for
identification, reporting and prevention of undesired behaviour. An Internal Complaints

Committee (ICC) was set up from the senior management with women employees
constituting majority.

The ICC is responsible for redressal of complaints related to sexual harassment and
follows the guidelines provided in the Policy.

During the year ended 31 March, 2015, no complaints have been received pertaining to
sexual harassment. :

[CCL Board Structure and Governance

Managing Director

Mr. K. Kumar, is the Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Clearing
Corporation.

Public Interest Directors

Ms. Maya Swaminathan Sinha has been appointed as Public Interest Directors with effect

from 16t January, 2015. Mr. G. Sethu continues to remain the Public Interest Director of
ICCL.

Shareholder Directors

Mr. Ashishkumar Chauhan and Mr. Nehal Vora are Shareholders Director. Mr. Nehal Vora,

Shareholders Director is liable to retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual general Meeting
and being eligible offers himself for re-appointment.

Corporate Social Responsibility

As mentioned in Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, every company having net
worth of rupees five hundred crore or more, or turnover of rupees one thousand crore or
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more or a net profit of rupees five crore or more during any financial year shall constitute
a Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the Board consisting of three or more
directors, out of which at least one director shall be an independent director.

The Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 further elaborates

in detail the formulation of the policy, the roles and responsibilities of the same and such

other relevant matters including CSR Expenditures and CSR Reporting. ICCL has complied
with the requirements of the said section.

The Composition of the CSR Policy has been disclosed in the Corporate Governance
Report which forms a part of the Annual Report.

Details of CSR expenditure spent during the financial year:
(a) Total amount to be spent during the financial year: INR 1.02 Crore

{b) Amount unspent, if any: INR 0.60 Crore

{c) Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below:

1781‘. CSR Sector in | Projects Amou | Amount Cumula : Amount
No. | project or | which the | or nt spent on the | tive spent:
activity project is | programs | outlay | projects or expendi | Directly or
identified | covered (1) Local | (budg | programs ture through
area  or | et) Subheads: upto implemen
others projec | (1)  Direct | the ting
(2) t or!expenditure |reporti | agency
Specify | progr | on projects | ng
the State |ams | or programs | period
and wise | (2)
district Overheads
where
projects
or
programs
were
undertak
en
Donaticn to Health All India ¥ 20.00 | (1) ¥30.00 lakhs Z 30.00 i Spent through
lakhs lakhs donation  to
Swachh {2) T il Government
Bharat Kosh
Donaticn  to | Health All India T 10.00 | (1) T 10.0C lakhs g10.00 Spent through
Shrimati lakhs lakhs donation  to
Pushpawati {2} Z il Shrimati
Loomba Trust Pushpawati
Loomba Trust
Total Z 40.00 { (1) T40.00 lakhs g 40.00
lakhs lakhs
I

The Company has not spent an amount of Rs.60.02 lakhs during FY 2014-2015. The non-
utilization of the CSR Limit was on account of this being the first year of applicability of

u
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the provisions of CSR, the CSR Committee was formed and the policy was approved. The

unspent amount in FY 2014-15 would be spent alongwith the amount required to be
spent in FY 2015-16.

The CSR Committee of the Company hereby confirms that the implementation and
monitoring of CSR Policy, is in compliance with C5R objectives and Policy of the Company.

21. Acknowledgements:

The Board thanks the Government of India, Securities and Exchange Board of India,
Reserve Bank of India, the Government of Maharashtra and other State Governments
and various government agencies for their continued support, cooperation and advice.

The Board is grateful to the members of various committees constituted during the year.
The Board also acknowledges the support extended by clearing members, custodians,
issuers, investors in the capital market, and other market intermediaries and associates.
The Board expresses sincere thanks to a1l its business associates, consultants, bankers,

auditors, solicitors and lawyers for their continued partnership and confidence in the
Clearing Corporation.

The Board wishes to thank all the employees for the dedication and excelience displayed
in discharge of their duties for the Clearing Corporation.

Finally, the Board expresses its gratitude to you as shareholders for the confidence
reposed in the management of the Exchange.

For and on behalf of the Board

AN (\W

K. Kumar Nehal Vora
Managing Pirector & CEQ Shareholder Director
4.

A

Place: Mumbai

Date: May 15, 2015
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Tat - +871 22 2506 3310

O AQQONMIATERQ . 401 22 2506 0321
N L BHATIA & ASSOCIATES el oot com
PRACTISING COMPANY SECRETARIES. navnitlb@hotmail.com

Website  : www.nlba.in

We have examined the compliance of conditions of corporate governance by INDIAN CLEARING
CORPORATION LIMITED (“the Corporation”) for the year ended 31" March, 2015, as stipulated

in clause 49 of the Listing Agreement pursuant to Regulation 35 of SECC Regulation, 2012 read
with paragraph 14.4 of SEB} Circular dated 13" December, 2012.

The compliance of conditions of corporate governance is the responsinility of the Management.
Our examination was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the
Corporation for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the corporate governance. It Is
neither an audit nor an expression of cpinion on the financial statements of the Corporation.

In our opinion and to the best of our infermation and according to the explanations given 1o us,
we certify that the Corporation has complied with the conditlons of corporate governance as

stipuiated In clause 49 of the Listing Agreement pursuant to Regulation 35 of SECC Reguiation,
2012 read with paragraph 14.4 of SEB! Circular dated 13" December, 2012,

for M. L. Bhatia & Assoclates

\\\ e e b LR o ben

N.L Bhatia
FCS8-1176
CP NO. 422

Mumbai
5™ May, 2015

Addrass: 313, Shree Saldham GHSL, Vikrant Clrcle, 90 Feet Road, Opp. Pancholi Hospital, Ghatkopar (E), Mumbai 400 077.
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Corporsta identity Number : U&7 1 20MH007PLC! 70358

gellability buitds reletionships

The Board of Directors

Indian Clearing Corporation Limited
25% Floor, P, Towers, -

Dalal Straet,

Mumhbal - 400 004,

Sub: CEQ Certification
b K. Kumar, Managing Director & Chief Executive Officer do hereby certify the following:-

a. | have reviawed the financial statement and cash flow statement for the year ended Mar 31,2015
and to the best of our knowledge and heliaf:

{) the said statements do not contain any matearially untrue statement or omit any material
fact or contain statements that might be misleading;

(if) the said statements, together present a true and falr view of the Corapany’s affairs and are
in compli'ance with existing accounting Standards, applicable laws and regulations,

b, There are, to the hast of our knewledge and ballef, no transactions entarad into by the Cempany
during the year ended Mar 31, 2015, which ara fraudulent, illegal or viclative of the Company’s
Code of Conduct. '

z.

[ accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal contrels for financial reporting and
that | have evaluated the effectiveness of the internal cantrol systams of the Company pertaining
to financial réporting and have disclosed to the Auditers and the Audit Committes, deficiencies In

the design or operation of such internal contrals, if any, of which { am awarz and the steps [ have
taken or propose to take to rectily these deficiencies.

d. have indicated to the auditors and the Audit Committee,

(i} stgnificant changes, if any, in Internal confrol over financial reporting during the year;

(1) signlﬂca nt changas, if any, in accounting policies and that tha same have been disclased
in the notes to the financial statemenfs; and

{iH) instances of signiﬁcént fraud of which we have become aware and the involvernent

therein, i any, of the management or an emplovee having significant rola in the
company’s internal control system over financlal reporting,

kfﬁ,\ﬁ W™
Place: Mumbai K. Kunar
Date: 15/05/2015 Managing Director & CEQ

]

YWhally owned subsidiary of a5t



Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as on the financial year ended on March 31, 2015

[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of
the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:

i} CIN:- U67120MH2007PLC170358

ii) Registration Date: April 26, 2007

ii{) Name of the Company: Indian Clearing Corporation Limited

iv) Category / Sub-Category of the Company: Company limited by shares

v) Address of the Registered office and contact details: 25" Floor, P.J Towers, Dalal Street
Mumbai-400 001

vi) Whether listed company Yes / No: NO

vii) Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar and Transfer Agent, if any: Karvy
Computershare Limited, Hyderabad.

L. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall
be stated:-

Sl No. Name and description of main | NIC Code of the 9 to total turnover
products/ services Product /Service of the company

1 Income from Operations NIL 64.77%

2 Income from Invest/Deposits NIL 35.23%

1I1. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES -

Sr. Nand CIN/GLN Holding/Su | % of | Applicable
No address of bsidiary/As | Share | section
the sociate sheld
Company
1 BSE Limited | U67120MH2005PLC155188 Holding 100%




iV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total

Equity)

i) Category-wise Share Holding

Category
code

Category of
Shareholder

Number of
Shareholders

Total number
of shares

Number of shares
held in
dematerialized
form

Total shareholding
as a percentage of
total number of
shares

%change during
the Year

As a percentage
of(A+B)

)

(1)

{11}

(v}

V)

(Vi)

{A)

Shareholding of
Promoter and
Promoter
Group

Indian

(a)

Individuals/
Hindu Undivided
Family

(k)

Central
Government/
State
Government(s)

(c)

Bodies
Corporate

3,54,00,00,000

3,53,99,99,984

(d)

Financial
Institutions/
Banks

(e)

Any
Others(Specify)

Sub Total{A)(1)

3,54,00,00,000

3,53,89,99,9%4

100.00

Foreign

individuals (Non-
Residents
Irdividuals/
Foreign
Individuals)

Bodies
Corperate

Institutions

Qualified Foreign
Investor

Any
Others(Specify}

Sub Total(A}2)

Total
Shareholding of
Promoter and

3,54,00,00,000

3,53,99,99,994

100.00




Promoter
Grolp (A)=
(A)(1)+{AX2)

(B)

Public
shareholding

Institutions

(a)

Mutual Funds/
UTH

(k)

Financiat
Institutions /
Banks

{c}

Central
Government/
State
Government(s)

{d)

Venture Capital
Funds

(e)

Insurance
Companies

®

Foreign
Institutional
investors

(@D

Foreign Venture
Capital investors

{m

Qualified Foreign
Investor

®

Any Other
(specify)

Sub-Total (B)}{(1)

B2

Non-institutions

(@)

Bodies
Corporate

(b}

Individuals

i. Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
share capital up
to Rs 1 lakh

i. Individual
shareholders
holding nominai
share capital in
excess of Rs. 1
iakh.

{c)

Qualified Foreign
Invesior

{d)

Any Qther
{specify)

Sub-Total (B}2)

(B)

Total

Public
Shareholding
{B)=
(BY1)+(B)2)




TOTAL (A)+(B)

3,54,00,00,000

3,53,99,99,994

100.00

€

Shares held by
Custodians and
against

which
Depository
Receipts have
been issued

1 Promoter and
Promoter Greup

Public

Sub-Total (C )

GRAND TOTAL
(A)+(B)+(C)

3,54,00,00,000

3,53,99,99,994

(ii) Shareholding of Promoters

Mame of the Shareholding at the Sharehoiding at the end of the year
Sr. | shareholder Beginning of the Year
No.
Number of % of total | % of No of shares % of total % of Shares ; % change in
shares held shares of | shars shares of the | pledgedienc | shareholding
the pledged! Company umbered o during the
Company | encumb total shares year
ered to
total
shares
1 BSE Limited
3,54,00,00,000 100.0C 3,54,00,00,000 100.00 NiL
TOTAL
3,54,00,00,000 100.00 - 3,54,00,00,000 100.00 NIL

(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding {please specify, if there is no change}

Shareholding at the Beginning of the Cumulative Shareholding during the Year
Sr. Year
No.
Number of % of total shares of | No. of Shares % of total shares of the
shares held the Company company
At the beginning of the Year NIL NiL NiL NilL.
Date wise Increase/Decrease in NIL NIL NIL NIL
Promoters Shareholding during
the year specifying the reasons
for increase/decrease (eg,
Mlotment/transfer/bonus/sweat
aquity ete.
At the end of the Year NIL NIL NIiL NIL




(iv) Shareholding Pattern of Top ten shareholders {other than Directors, Promoters and Holders

of GDRs and ADRs)
Shareholding at the Beginning of Cumulative Shareholding during the Year
Sr. the Year
No.
Number of % of total No. of Shares % of total shares of the
shares shares of the company
For Each of the Top 10 Company
Shareholders
At the beginning of the Year
3,54,00,00,000 100.00 3,54,00,00,000 100.00
Date wise Increase/Decrease in | NIL NIL NiL NIL
Promoters Shareholding during the
year specifying the reasons for
increase/decrease feg.
Aliotment/transfer/honus/sweat
equity etc. .
Atthe end of the Year {or on the date | NIL NIL NiL “NiL
of separation, if separated during the
year)

(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Shareholding at the Beginning of

Cumnulative Shareholding during the Vear

Sr. the Year
No.
Numberof ! % of total shares of | No. of Shares % of total shares of the
shares the Company company
For Each of the Directors and KMP
At the heginning of the Year 1 0.00 1 0.00
1. Mr. Ashishkumar Chauhan 1 0.00 1 0.00
2. Mr. Nehal Vora
{Shares held as nominees of
BSE Ltd)
Date  wise Increase/Decrease in
Prometers Shareholding during the
wyear specifying the reasons for
increase/decrease {eg.
Allotment/transfer/bonus/sweat NIL NIL NIL NIL
equity efc.
Atthe end of the Year
-1, Mpr. Ashishkumar Chauhan 1 0.00 1 0.00
2. Mr. Nehal Vora 1 0.00 1 0.00
{Shares held as nominees of BSE Ltd)




V. INDEBTEDNESS:

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for the payment.

Secured Loans Unsecured Deposits | Total Indebtedness
excluding Loans
deposits
Indebtedness at the beginning NIL NIL NIL
of the financial year
i. Principal Amount
ii. Interest due butnot paid
iii. Interestaccrued but not due
Total (i+ii+iii)
Change in Indebtedness NIL NIL NIL
during the financial year
Addition
Reduction
Indebtedness at the end of the NIL NIL NIL
financial year
i. Principal Amount
ii. Interest due but notpaid
iii. Interestaccrued butnot due
Total (i+ii+iii)
V1. Remuneration of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel
A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:
by | Particulars of Remuneration | Name of MD/WTD/Manager Total
No. Amount
Mr. K.
Kumar
1. Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions
contained in section 17(1) of the | {as mentioned in the attached financial statement}
Income-tax Act, 1961
(b} Value of perquisites u/s
17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961
{c) Profits in lieu of salary under
section 17(3) Income-fax Act,
1961
2. Stock Options NIL
3. Sweat Equity NIL
4, Commission NIL
- As% of profit
- Others, specify
5. Others, please specify NIL
Taotal (A)
Ceiling as per the Act




. Remuneration to other directors:

Sl

No.

Particulars of Remuneration

Name of MD/WTD/Manager

Total
Amount

Independent Directors

s Fees for attending Board,
Committee Meetings

+ Commission

o Others, please specify

Total (1)

Other Non- Executive Directors

¢ Fees for attending Board,
Committee Meetings

« Commission

s Others, piease specify

NIL

NIL

Total (2)

Total (B)={1+2)

Total Managerial Remuneration

Qverall Ceiling as per the Act

. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel Other than MD/Manager/WTD

Sl

No.

Particulars of Remuneration

Key Managerial Personnel

CEO

Company
Secretary

CFO

Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions
contained in section 17(1) of the
Income-tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s
17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under
section 17(3) Income-tax Act,
1961

(as mentioned in the attached financial statement)

Stock Options

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

w

Sweat Equity

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

Commission

- As % of profit
- Others, specify

NIL

NIL

NIL

NIL

Others, please specify

Total




VIL Penalties/Punishment/ Compounding of Offence

Type Section of Brief Details of Authorised | Appeal
the Description | Penalties/Punishment | (RD/NCLT/ | made, if
Companies /Compounding fees Court) any(give
Act imposed Details)

A. COMPANY

Penalty NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Punishment NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Compounding NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

B. DIRECTORS

Penalty NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Punishment NIL NIL NIL NIL NiL

Compounding NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

C. Other Officersin

default

Penalty NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Punishment NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Compounding NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL




MEHTA MEHTA

Form No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2015

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rule 9 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,
2014]

To,

The Members,

Indian Clearing Corporation Limited
25tk Floor, P. J. Towers

Dalal Street Mumbai 430001

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable
statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by Indian
Clearing Corporation Limited (hereinafter called “the Company”). Secretarial
audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for

evaluating the corporate conducts / statutory compliances and expressing our
opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minutes books,
forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also
the information provided by the Company, its officer, agents and authorized
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in
our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial
year ended on 31st March, 2015, complied with the statutory provisions listed
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes and

compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the
reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed
and other records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on
31st March, 2015 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA’) and the
tules made thereunder;

Secretarial Audit Report | Financial Year 2014-15 {indian Clearing Corporation Limited | 1| Page




MEHTA MEHTA

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed
thereunder;

Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and
regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct
Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial
Borrowings (during the year under review not applicable to the
Company as the Company does not have any foreign direct
investment, overseas direct investment and external commercial
borrowings);

The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the
Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (SEBI Act’):-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial
Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 (during
the year under review not applicable to the Company as the
Company is an unlisted company};

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of
Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992;

{¢c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India {Issue of Capital and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009 (during the year
under review not applicable to the Company as the Company is

an unlisted company and not proposing to get its securities
listed);

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock
Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines,
1999 (during the year under review not applicable to the
Company as the Company is an unlisted company);

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of
Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 (during the year under review
not applicable to the Company as the Company is an unlisted
company and not proposing to get debt securities listed);

Secretarial Audit Report | Financial Year 2014-15 |Indian Clearing Corporation Limited | 2 | Page




MEHTA MEHTA

(fy The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an
Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the
Companies Act and dealing with client;

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity
Shares) Regulations, 2009 (during the year under review not
applicable to the Company as the Company has done delisting of
shares); and

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of
Securities) Regulations, 1998 (during the year under review not
applicable to the Company as the Company is an unlisted
company);

(vi)  The Securities Contracts (Regulation) {(Stock Exchanges and Clearing
Corporations) Regulations, 2012 (“the SECCR");

We have not examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following
since it is not applicable to the Company during the period under review:

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of
India;

(iiYThe TListing Agreements entered into by the Company with Stock
Exchange(s), however, it is stated that in terms of regulation 35 of the
SECCR, clause 49 of the Listing Agreement is applicable to the Company;

During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions
of Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines etc. mentioned above subject to
following observations: -

1. As per clause (ii)(b) of Part A of Schedule II of the SECCR, Public interest
directors is required to meet separately, at least once in six wmonths to exchange
views on critical issues, however, there was only one such meeting held during
the year as on 14th July 2014 and there was no such meeting within six ntonths
from that day.

We further report that:

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance
of the Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors.

Secretarial Audit Report | Financial Year 2014-15 |Indian Clearing Corporation Limited | 3| Fage
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MEHTA MEHTA

The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during

the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of
the Act.

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings,
agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance,
with consent of the board and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
for meaningful participation at the meeting.

Majority decision of the Board is carried through while the dissenting
members’ views are captured and recorded as part of the minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the
company commensurate with the size and operations of the company to momnitor
and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period there was no specific events /
actions having a major bearing on the Ceompany’s affairs in pursuance of the
above referred laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, etc.

For Mehta & Mehta,
Company Secretaries
(1CSI Unique Code P1996MH007500)

Sd/-

Dipti Mehta
Partner

FCS No : 3667
CP No. : 3202

Place
Date

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as
‘ANNEXURE A’ and forms an integral part of this report.
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To,

Annexure A

The Members,

Indian Clearing Corporation Limited
25th Floor, P. J. Towers

Dalal Street Mumbai 400001

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1.

Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management
of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
secretarial records based on our audit.

We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate
to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of
the secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure
that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the

processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial
records and Books of Accounts of the Company.

Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation

about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of
events etc.

The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws,
rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our
examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

The secretarial audit report is neither an assurance as to the future
viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which
the management has conducted the affajrs of the Company.

For Mehta & Mehta,
Company Secretaries,
(ICSI Unique Code P1996MH007500)

Sd/-

Dipti Mehta
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Partner
FCS No : 3667
CP No. : 3202

Place
Date
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REFPORT

T3 THE MEMBERS OF INDIAN CLEARING CORPORATION LIMITED
On the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of INDIAN CLEARING CORPORATION

LIMITED ("the Company®), which comprlse the Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2015, the Statement,

of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of the significant.

accounting policies and other explanatory informatien forming part of the Financial Statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements
The Company's Board of Directors is responslble for the

matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (

"he Act?) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that
give a true and fair view of the financlal pa
Company In accordance with the accounting
Accounting Standards speci
{Accounts) Rules,

sitlon, financial performance and cash flows of the
principles genetally accepted in india, including the
fied under Section 133 of the A'ct, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
2014. This responsibility also includes malntenance of adequate accounting records
q accordance with the provisions of the Act for safequarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing -and detecting frauds and other irregularities;

selection and appiication of appropriate
accounting pol

icies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
Implementation and malntznance of. adequate internal financial controfs,
effactively For ensuring the accuracy and completeness ©
preparation and presentation of the financial stat

that were operating
f the accounting vecords, relevant to the

ements That glve a true and fair view and are free
from material misstaktement, whether due to frand or erroy. '

Auditor's Responsibllity

Our rasponsibility Is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit,

We have taken into acceunt the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing s

matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions ¢
Rules made there under.

tandards and
f the Act and the




C ‘;“"r‘ " & "‘II
S o T e e
i, PTRTRS O Yo,

Chizrisizd ACCLURIRLG:

2, Thies Yiew Socizty, Veer Savarkar idarg, Mumbal - 406 025, Tal/ Fax . 2437 0483 / 84 £

4 Emsil admin@panse.in

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF INDIAN CLEARING CORPORATION LIMITED
On the Financial Stataments

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of IRDIAN CLEARING CORFPORATION
LIMITED ("the Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31% March, 2015, the Statement
of Profit and Loss, the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summaty of the significant
accounting policles and other expianatory Information forming part of the Financlal Statements.

Management's Respoansibility for the Financial Statements

The Cornpany's Board of Directers is responsible for the matters statad in Seétion 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that
give a true and falr view of the financial. position, financial performance and cash flows of the
Cernpany In accordance with the accaunting principles generally accepted in India, including the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibllity alsc includeé matntenance of adequate dccounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selectlon and application of appropriate
accounting policles; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, refevant to the
preparation and presantation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free

 from material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinlon on these financial statements basad on our audit.
We have taken Into account the provislons of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and

matters which are required to be included in the audit report under the provislons of the Act and the
Rules made there under,




We conductad our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143{10)
of the Act. Those Standards raquire that we comply with ethlcal requiraments and plan and parform

the audit to obtaln reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements ave free from
material misstatement.”

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the
disciosures in the financial staternents. The procedures selected depehd on the auditor's judgment
Including the assessment of the risks of matarlal misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessiments, the auditor considers internal financlal
control relevant to the Company's preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair
view In order to designh audit procedures that are appropriate in the clrcumstances. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the

accpun‘clng' astimates made by the Company's Directors, as weil as evaluating the overall preéentation
of the financial stataments. ‘ '

We bellave that the audit evidence we have obtained i sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the financial statermnents,

Cpinton

In our opinion and to the best of ouf information and according to the explanations given to us, the
~ aforesaid financial staternants give the Inforration required by the Act In the manner so reguired and
glve a true and.fair view in copformity with the accounting principles generally accepted In India, of

the state of affairs of the Company as at 31% March, 2015, and its profit and its cash flows for the
vear endad on that date.

Raport on Other Légal and Ragulatory Requirements
1. As required by the Companies (Audltor's Report) Ordey, 2013 (“the Orderd), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act

2013, we glve in the Annexure a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of
. the Order, to the extent applicable. ' '

2. As reguired by Sectlon 143 (3) of the Act, we report that,

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and bellef wers necassary for the purposes of our audit.

{b) In our opinlon, proper books of account as raquired -by taw have -been_kept by the
Company so far as it appears frem our axaminatlon of those books.

(c) The Balance Sheet the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement deait
with by thls Report are In agreement with the books of account.

gbe



Annexure to the Auditor’s Report
A statemient on the matters spacifled in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Companies

{Auditor's
Report) Order, 2015 (“the Order’)

The Annexure referred to in paragraph 1 of our Report to the members of INDIAN CLEARING

CORPORATION LIMITED {"the Company") for the year ended 31 March, 2015,

We report that:

() (a) The Company has malntained proper recards showling full pa

ricutars including
guantitative details and sltuation of its fixed assets.

{9) As exptained to us, fixed assets have been

physically verified by the managerment
at reasonable

intervals; no material discrepancles were naticed on such
verification. ' :

{ily The Company is 2 service company, primarily ln the business of carrying out the
functions of clearing, settlement, collateral management and risk
various segments of different stock exchanges. It does

paragraph 3 (it} of the Order ls not applicable.

rhanagement for
not hold any stock, hence

(it} According to the information and explanations given to us .and on the basls of our :
examination of the books ©

f account and other. records, the Company has not granted

any loans, secured or unsecurad, to companies, firms or othar parties covered in the

register malntained under Section 183 of the Companies Act, 2013,

Accordingly,
paragraphs 3 (iil) (a) and 3(4i) (b) are not applicable.

(v} In our opinion and according ta the Information and explanations given to us, there Is

ystern commensurate with the size of the company and

for the purchase fixed assets and for sale of services,
Dhring the course of our audi

an adeguate internal control s
the nature of its business,

t, we have not observed any Instance of continuing
failure to correct any majer weakness in the internal control system.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public.

(vl) According to the informatlon and expl

gnations given to us the Central Government of
Indla has hot prescrib

od maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the ™
Companies Act, 2013 for the services rendered by the company.




(vii) (2) Accord'ing to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records, Company is generaliy ragular in dépositlng undisputed -
statutory dues Including provident fund,' empioyees’ state insurance, income-tax, '
sales tax, wealth tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value added

tax, cess and other materiat statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate
" autherlties during the period.

(b) According to the information and explénanons given to us and on the basis of our
exafnlnat‘;on of the books of account and other records, there are no dues of
income tax, sales tax or wealth tax or service tax or duty of customs or duty of
excise or value added tax or cess have not baen deposited on account of dispute.

(€) There were no amoaunts which were required to be transferred to the Investar
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.,

(Vi) The Company does not have accumulated losses as at March 31, 2015, It has not
incurred cash losses in FY 2013-14 and FY 2014-153.

{(ix} The Co‘mpany has nefther taken any loan from bank or financial Institution nar issued
any debenture hence provislons of paragraph 3 (viil) of the Order are not applicable,

- (x}. According o the Information and expianations given to us ‘and on the basis of our
examinatien ¢f the books of account and other records, the Company has not given
any guarantee for loans taken by others from banks and financlal institutions

(xi) The company has not taken any term loans hence provisions of paragraph 3 (xi) of the
Order Is not applicable,

{xil) According to the Information and explanations given to us, no-fraud on or by -the

Company has not been noticed or reportad during the year during course of our audit.

For § Panse & Co

Chartered Accountants
FRM: 113470W

Supriya Fanse

Partner :

Membership No.: 46607
Mumbai

May 15, 2015
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3 ‘3 INDIAN CLEARING CORPORATION LIMITED
e R e BALAMCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2015
Quliabiilly bullds. rafatioaships ! . '
- e . % Im Lakh
Partjeulars . | Note Af at Asat
Mo tiareh 31, 2015 March 31,2014
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Shareholder's Funds .
{a} Share Capital ) 2 35,400 35,400
{b) Resarves And Surplus 3 11,419 10,772
. 46,319 46,172
Mon-Current Liabifities
{a} Deferred Tax Liabliity {net) - ' 4 13
{b) Other Long-term Liabllities 5 2,609
‘ : 2,622
Current Liabilities - '
{a) Trade Payables G 2,382
by Other Current {labilities 7 68,557 92,400
_(c} Short-term Provisions 5,757 3,015
) " 76,696 95,681
Total 1,26,137 1,41,323 |
ASSETS .
MNon-current Assats '
{a) Fixed Assets g
(It  Tanglble Asseis 21
(i) intangible Assets | 182
(it} . Intangible Assets Under Development a
{b) Non-current investments i0 ~o31A72
() Long-term Loans And Advances 11 858
{8} Other non-current Assets 12 -
SR 32,239
Current Assets -
la} Current tnvestments - 13 124,116
b} Trade Recelvables i4 ) : 30
ic} Cash And Bank Balances - 15 | - 67,084
(@) Short-term Loans And Advances. 16 |- 157
(e} Other Current Assets 17 ‘ 2,461
| 93,898 | 1,14,406
Total. 1} T 1,726,137 | 1,431,283
See aciompanying notes ferming part of financial staterments 1-32

ta terrns of our repert attached For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

for 5. Panse & Co. ) b\“ \‘\_}/‘/ ) | o 7/,%6

thartered Accountants
firm Reg. No. 113470W

K. Kumar . . G, Sethu
Managlhg Director & CEO B Director
& Pop [ |
Supriya Pa@? W
fartmer
Merazership No.: 46607 wianisha Thakur

Cornpany Secretary
place; Mumba}

Dater May 15, 2015

Y
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INDIAN CLEARING CORPORATION LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AMD LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2015

% Inlakh
Note \ For the Year Ended vor the Year 'Endej

Particulars No March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014

REVENUES

{a) Revenue From Operations 1,723 _ 813
(b) Revenue “Erom nvestments And Deposits 7,_249 8,296
{c) Other Income 19 . i
Totat Revenue il 9,041 | 3,110 |
EXPENSES
{a} Employee Benefits Expenses 21 434 - 316
{b} Other Operating Expenses 22 1,259 Co1232
(¢} Depreciation And Arnortisation 9 97 27
{d) Flnance Cost - Interest 12§ 16
_Total Expenses [— 1,802 1,591
profit Before Exceptional, Extraordinary ftems And Tax 1= 7,239 7,519
Exceptional ltems - - -
_\profit Before Extraordinary ems And Tax -1y 7,239 7,519
Extraordinary ttems . ) )
{profit Before Tax YRv 7,239 | 7,519 |
Tax Expense:
Current Tax 895 2450 [
Deferred Tax 1 12
Current Tax For Earller Years, - 8
Profit From Cantinuing Operations VI - it 6,343 | 5,049 |
orofit From Discontinulng Operations r - -
Profit For The Year e | 5,343 6,049 |
Earning Per Equity Share:
Basic And Diluted 0.17 C.17
Par Value Of Share (Re.) 1 1
Welghted Average Number Of Shares {Nos.} 3,54,00,00,000 3,54,00,00,000
1-32

See actompanying notes forming part of financial statements

Interms of our teport attached Eor and on behalf of the Board of Directors

For 5. Panse & Co. \% \? w

Chartered Accountanis

fFirm Reg. Ne.: 113470 K. Kurrar , G. Sefhu
) managing Director & CEC Director

@Qwa@}@
Manisha Thakur
Company Secretary

Partner
" Membership No.: 46607

place: Mumbai
pate: May 15,2015

%



Inglan Claoring Geraaration Ltmiod

INDIAN CLEARING CORPORATION LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATtMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 21, 2913

KIS L) Bl B
Zaltaolly huildy relotianshing

Net Profit Before Tax

< Inizkh
particulars For the year ended For the year ended
. i Wrarch 31, 2015 parch 31, 2014
A, LCASH RLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

7,239 7,519
Adjustments For:
Amostisation Of Share lssue Expenses - 9
Amortisation Of Bonds Premium / Discount On Bands {71} {210}
Finance Cost 12 16
Depreciation On Fixed Assets 97 27
Penalties/Contribution received towards Settlement Guarantee Fund 66 50
Proceeds from Defaulter assets realisation - 45
provision for Campensated absence 25 3
Profit on Sale / Redemption of Bonds - {109}
{Profit) / Lass Cn Sale / Redemption Of Mutual Funids {1) 12
Provision in Diminution-of Current Invastment {53) LY
interest Income {5,531} {6,257)
Dividend Income {1,490} {1,720}
{,946) (8,087}
Operating Profit BaforaWorlking Capital Changes 293 (568)
Adiustrments for (increase){Decrease in ;
Trade Recelvables ) 58 83
Short-term Loans And Advances e . a5 (282)
Long-term Loans And Advances ’ (2} : 5
Other Current Assets {1,414) 9
Adjustments For increase/{Becraase In Operating Liability ©
Trade Payable 2,116 76
OCther Current Liabilities {21,398} 156,956
Shoert Term Provisions. {3
Other Long term Current Liabslltles 2,554 18
{18,501} 16,870 |
Taxes Paid \‘ , {1,529} (1,45‘0}\
Nt Cash From / {Used In) Operating Activitles | {18,737) 14,842 |
. YeasH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
purchase of Fixed Assets {108} {220}
purchase of Long Term Investments {4,032} {25,918}
proceeds from Long Term fnvestments - 22,000
pet {Increase) / Decrease in Current Investments 18,582 (21,208}
Net { increase) / Dacrease In Fixed Deposits With Banks 18,573 {6,513}
interest Income 5,325 8,497
pividend From Mutual Funds 1,490 | 1,720
Net Cash From / {Used In) Investment Activitias [_ 34,830 l (21,6@1
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
pivl dend Pald {2,564) {1,721}
Tax On Dividend Paid {436} {279)
finance Cost {12) (18)
flet: Cash From [ (Used In)-Financing Actlvittes ﬁ {3,012}1




et (Decrease) { Inerease I Cash and Cash Equivalents

Casi.\ pnd Cash Eguivalents At The End Of The Yaar

In Current Account . . 6,227
in Deposlt Account : B 26,990
33,212 |
Cash And Cash Equivalents At The Beginning Of The Year 16,131 |
Changes in Cash & Cash Equivalents : L 17,081 | {8,808}
; 5
"\ cach And Cash Equivalents At The End Of The Yeat - ' 33,212 | 16,131
Add: Eatraarked Bank balance B L 231
Add: Fixed Deposits orlginal maturlty more than 3 Months 31,233 49,8087
Add: Earmarked Fixed Deposits : 2,554 3,728
Cash And Bank Balance as per note no, 15" ‘ | 67,004 | 69,908 |

Note 1: Cash and Cash Bquivalents comprlse balances in eurrent account with banks (owned funds and SGF).
Note 2: Cash fiow does not include Cash and Cash Equivalents held by the' Company on behalf of United Stock Exchange for

use in its operation as manager of the clearing and settlement systern. These Cash and Cash Equivalents of earmarked funds
ara held in segregated accounts.

3aa accompanying notes forming part of financial statements

in terms of our report attached ¢or and on hehalf of the Board of Dirsctors
For §. Panse & Co. l
Chartjefed,Accountants ’ K. Kurmy ?‘:' ‘ ) : G. Sethu
Firmn Reg. Nos 113470W Managlhg Director & CED _ Director
. ‘-«.\:’o
C& . Y
iy MUMBA}
Suprlya Pa ;

Partner
tdembership No. 48607

plate: Mumbai
Date: May 15, 2015

(‘,.)’ Manisha Thakur
pss
= .Cormpany Secretary






Slgniﬁ_cant Accounting Policies and Notes to Accounts

Notes annexed to and forming part of Financia

. 2015

| Statements for the Year ended March 31,

4

Company Overview

Indian Clearing Corporation Limited
wholly-owned subsidiary of BSE 1td. 1CCL carrias

collateral management and risk management
exchanges.

(M1CCL” or "company”) was incorporated in 2007 as a
out the functions of clearing, settlement,
for various segments of different stock

.1. Significant Accaunting Policies

1.1

©1.3.2

13

1.3.1 'Revenue from Services is recognize

133

pasis of preparation of financial statements:

The financial statements are prepared on the historical cast convention, on the
accrual basis of accounting and conform to accounting principles generally accepted
In India and the Accounting Standards as notified under the Companies {Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2006, in terms of the Companies Act, 1956 {which continue to be
applicable in respect of Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 in terms of General
Circular 15/2013 dated 13th September, 2013 of the Ministry of Corporata Affairs).

Use of Estimates:

The preparation of financial stateéments, in conformity with Indian GAAP, requires
the management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
halances of assets and Habilities and disctosures relating to contingent lizbilities as
at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues and
expenses during the year, Ditferance between the actual results and estimates are
recognised in the peried in which the results are known/materialised.

3

Revenue Recognition: *

d as and when the sérvice Is performed as
per the relevant agreements and when there is a reasonable certainty of
ultimate realization.

Dividend income s re_cogniz,ed when the unconditional right to receive
dividend is establishad.

implicit in the transaction. Premium paid/discount received at the time of
acquisition of government / Debt securities is amortised over the residual
period of its maturity. . ' '

U

Interest income is recognized.on a time proportion method, based on rates |



14

1.5

1.8

Fixced Assets:

1.4.4 Tangible Assets:

Tangible Assets are stated at cost net of recoverable taxes, less accumulated
depreciation and impairment loss, if any. The cost of tangible assets comprises
purchase price and any cost directly attributable to brin
working condition for its intended use. -

1.4.2 Intangible Assets: -

[y Cost of developmen

purchased software, used for the purpose of operations, is capitalised:

() Any expense on software for suppdrt, maintenance, upgrades etc.,
payable periodically is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

1.4.3 l_ntangib\e assets under development:

intangible assets under development include cost of fixed assets
ready for their intended use at the reporting date. .

Depraclation:

1.5.1 - Tangible Assets:

Depraciation on angible assets s provided onthe apritten Down Value’ basls,
. except depreciation on Motor Vehicle, as per useful jife of the assets as

prescribed under sehedule 1l of the Companies Act, 2013 for the number of
days the assets have heen ready to put to use for their intended purposes.
Depreciétion'on Motar Vehicl

years which represent the tea

se period of the asset purchased on finance
lease, .

135.2 Intangible Assets:

Intangible assets consisting of computer software are being depreciated at
40% on the "Written Down Value' basis for the number of days the assetshave
been ready to put to use for thelr Intended purposes

|mpairmanf of Assets:

The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed at each Bala

nce Sheet date if there s
an indication of i'mpairment base

d on the internal and external factors.

An asset Is treated as impaired when its carrying cost exceeds the recovershle
amount. An impairment loss, if any, is charged to the statement of Profit and Loss
in the year in which the asset is identified as impaired. Reversal of impairment loss
recognised in prior yearsis recorded when there is an indication that impairment
losses recognised for the assets no longer exist or have decreased.

"

ging the assets to its -

+ and production of Internally developed or

that are not

e assets Is depreciated over a usefu! life of 3

lo



1.7

1.8

investments:

Investments are either class
f\ﬁanagement’s intention.

ified as current or non-current hased on the

.

Current investments are carried at the lower of cost and fair value of each
Investment individually. '

Non-Current investments are stated at co

st, Provision for diminution is made to

recognize a decline other than temparary, in the value of such investments, The

cast of investment includes acquisition charges such as brokerage, etc. Front-end

discount/incentlve earned in respect of direct subscription is adjusted towards the
cost of investment. income on investments is accounted for on acerual basis.

Employee Benefits:

Employee benefits are accrued in accordance with Accounting
{Revised) "Emplayee Benefits”

R A

1.8.2

1.8.3

Standard-15

Provident Fund ~ Definad Contribution Plan

Eligible ‘'employees receive henefits from a provident fund, which is a
defined ‘contribution plan, Aggregate contribution along with interest
thereon is paid on cessation of services. Both the employee and the

company make monthly contributions to the “BSE Employees’ Provident

Fund”, a trust set up and administered by the BSE Ltd. The company is
liable for any shortfall in the fund assets based on the minimum rate of
return specified by the Government, which is debited to the Statement of
Profit and Loss as and when services are rendered by the employees.

Gratuity — Defined Benefit Plan

The Company accounts for the Tiability for future gratuity benefits based
on an actuarial valuation. The gratuity obligation Is wholly funded. The net
prasent value of the company’s obligation towards the same 1s Fctuarially
based on the projected unit credit method as at the Balance Sheet date.

Campensated Absences
The Company accrues the liability for compensated absences based on the
actuarial valuation as at the balance.sheet: date conducted by an

_independent actuary. The net present value of the Company's obligation

is determined based on the projected unit credit method as at the Balance

Sheet date.



1.9

1,10

141

Current tax is measured at the amoun

Leasss

Assets taken on lease by the Company in its capacity as a lessee, Where
cubstantially all the risks and rewards of ownership vest In the Company are
classified as finance leases, Such leases are capitalised at the inception of the lease
at the lower of the fair value and the présent_value of the minirnum lease payments
and a liability is created for an equivalent amount. Each lease rental paid Is’
aliocated between the liability and the interest cost 50 as to obtain a constant
periodic rate of interest on the outstanding liability for each year. '

Lease arrangements where the risks and rewards Incidental to ownership of an
asset substantially vest with the lessor are recognised as operating leases. Lease

rentals under operating leases are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss
on a straighf-line hasis, ' ’

Tax Expense:

Tax expenses comprises current fax (_I.e‘ amount of tax for the period-determined
in accardance with the income tax-law) and deferred tax charge of credit (reflecting

the tax effects of timing deference between accounting ircome and taxable income
for the year). '

t expected to be paid to the taxation
authoritles, using applicable tax rates and tax laws.

Deferred tax charge or credit and the corresponding deferred tax labilities and
assets are recognized using the tax rate and tax iaws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets are
recognised only to the-extent there is reasonable certainty that the assets can be

realized in the future; however where there is unahsorbed depreciation or carried
forward loses under taxation laws, deferred 1a

x assets are recognized only if there
is virtual certainty supported by convincing evidence that sufficient future taxable

income will be availabie against which such deferred tax assets can be realized.

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, Cont

ingent Assets.and Events Occurring after
the Balance Sheet Date:

Provisions involving substantial degree. of estimation in measurement are

recognised when thereisa present obligation as a result of past events and it is

probable that there will be an outfiow of resources. Centingent liabilities are not

recognised but are disclosed in Notes to Accounts, while Cantingent assets are

neither recognised nof disclosed in thé financial stataments. Adjustmentsto assets

and liabilities Is made for events occurring after the balance sheet date that provide
additional information materially affecting the determination of the amounts

relating to conditions existing at the balance sheet date. Adjustments to assets and
tiabllities are not made for events occutring after the balance sheet date, if such

events do not relate to conditions existing at the balance sheet date.

g
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113

1.14

. ¢ash ﬂowé. The cash flows from ©

1.15

1.16

Eoreign currency transactio

Forvelgn Currency Transacilon

fis are recorded at the exchange rate prevalling on the

date of transaction. All foreign currency current assets/liabilities are translated at

the rates prevalling of the date of the Balance Sheet. Foreigh Exchange rate
differences arising on settlement

sy / conversion(s) are recognised in the
staternent of Profit and Loss. ‘

Earnings per Share!

Basic earnings per snare is comp
equity shareholders by weighte
during the reporting year.

uted by dividing the net profit attributable to the
d average number of equity shares outstanding

The number of eguity shares used in corhputing diluted earnings per share

comprises the weighted average number of shares considerad for deriving baslc
earnings per-share and also weighted average number of equity shares which
would have been issued an conversion of all dilutive potential shares. In computing

diluted earnings per share only potential equity shares that are dilutive are
included.

Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / {loss) befare
extraardinary ftems and tax is adjusted for the effects of transactions of non-cash
nature and any deferrals ar accru

payments and item of income and expenses associated with investing or financing

perating, Investing and financing activities of the
Company are segregated based on the avallable information.

Cash and cash equivalents {for purposes of Cash Flow Staternent)

Cash cornprises cash on hand and demand dep

osits with banks. Cash equivalents
are short-term balances {with an original maturity of three months or less from the

date of -acquisition), highly liquid investments that aire readily convertible into

known amounts of qash and which are subject to inslgnificant risk of changes in
value. ‘ :

Rl

’Oper‘ati'ng Cycle '

Based on the nature of products / activities of the Company and the normal time

between acguisition of assets and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the

Campany has determined its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose of
classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current. :

o

als of past or future operating cash receipis or °
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1.18

1.19

Miscellaneous Expenditure:

Pre incorporation expense, expenditure incurred on issue of shares etcis amortized

gver period of 5 years.

Earmarked Funds:

Durlng the year company provides clearing and settlement services for BSE Ltd (All
segment) and United Stock Exchange (1) Ltd {USE) {Currency Derivative Segment}.
Current Liabilities — Earmarked Funds represents deposits, margin, etc, and alsa
settlement guarantee fund on behalf of BSE (held on behalf of USE prior merger},
These amounts are invested and same shall be earmarked in Balance Sheet. Income

earned on investment fram those earmarked funds is shown as liabilities and not
routed through Statement of Profit and Loss.

Core Settlement Guarantee Fund (Core SGF) :

As pet SEBI vide circular no. CIR/MRD}DRMNP/ZS/ZDM dated August 27, 2014

every recognised clearing corporation shall astablish and maintain a Fund for each

segment, to guarantee the settlernent of trades executed in respective segment of
a recognised stock exchange. Clearing Corporation {CC) shall have a fund called
Core SGF for each segment of each Recognised stock Exchange {SE) to guarantee
the settiement of trades executed in respactive segment of the SE. In the avent of
a clearing member {member) failing to honour settlerment commitments, the Core
SGF shall be used to fulfll] the obligations of that meraber and complete the
settlement without affecting the normal settlement process. Core SGF shall be
cantributad by Clearing Corporation (1CCL) and Stock exchange {BSE] as prescribed

by SEBL. This fund Is represented by aarmarked SGF investmen

ts. The income
earned on such investments (ICCL) Is credited to the Statement of Profit and Loss

and then appropriated to the fund (net of taxes). Pen
Company are directly transferred {o Core 5GF.

alties and fines levied by the

i



2. SHARE CAPITAL

_ ’ ' % In lakh

. ) Asa 5 a
Darticulars sat As at

. §5,00,00,00,000 Equity Shares of= 1/- each with voting rights

parch 34, 2015 | Mareh 33, 2014 '

\ 50,000 50,006

Autherised
lssued, Subscribed and Fully Paid- up ’

(As 2t March 31, 2014; 5,00,00,00,000 Equity Shares of 33/~ each)

3,54,00,00,b00 Equity Shares of % 1/- each with voting rights 35,400 35,400 |,
{As at March 34, 2014: 3,54,00,00,000 Equity Shares of R 1/- aach)
Total - ' {7 85400} 35,400 |
- i ]l
2{a). Reconclilation of number of shares outstanding at the beglnning and at the end of the year.
: As at March 31, 2015 AsstMarcn3l, 2014 |
‘ rtl 2
( Partleulars No. of Shares | % Inlakh No.of Snares | %mlakh |
Equity shares at the heginning of the year 3,54,00,00,000 35,400 3,54,00,00,000 35,400
Additions durlng the yesar - - - -
Equity shares at the end of the year '3-,54,00,00,000 . 35,400 3,54,00,00,000 35,400

2{b}. nvestment by B3E L_imitad (Holding Compény} and its Nominees ‘ -

artoutars of e - [ As at March 31, 2015 { AeatMarch3l, 204 |
[ No.ofShares | Rinfakh I No.ofShares | _ Intakh |
. |Opening Balance | 3,54,00,60,000 35,400 | 3,54,00,00,000 35,400

a) Right lssue

b} Bonus : - - - .

¢} Preferential Allotment - - - -

d} Others - - - .
Closing Balance : ["3,54,00,00,000 35,800 | 3,54,00,00,000 | 35,400 |
2(¢}. Ust of shareholders holding more than 5% shares . .

[ AsatMarch 31,2015 1 As at March 31, 2014 |
N f sh 9 :
ame of Sharehelders T No. of Shares \ % of total \ No. of Shares \ % of total shares \
.- shares
ESE timited and its nominees \ 3,54,00,00,000 \ : : 100\ 3,54,00,00,000 \ 100 l

2(d) 1. The hotders of equity <hares are entltled to dividends, if any, proposed by the board of directors and approved by
the shareholder at the Annual General Meeting.

Hd) il In tpe avent of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive any of the

remalning assets.of the Company, after distribution of preferential amount. However, no such preferential amount exists
currently. The distribution wili bein proportion o the number of equity shares held by ths shareholders.

by




. 3. RESERVES AND SURPLUS

: %I fakh
Particulars As at l As at
fdarch 31, 2015 March 31, 2034
Core Settlement Guarantee fund (Refer to Note 1,15 & 28)

Opening Balarice ' 563
Add : Corpus transferred from Statement of Prafit & Loss 7,314

Add ! income transferred from Statement of Profit & Loss 263
Add : Proceeds from Defaulter assets realisation -

Add : Pemalties/contribution received from members 66

Less : Transfarred to Exchange Contribution 1

sub-Totall 8,175
Statement of Profit and Loss

Opening Balance 10,209
Add : Profit for the year 6,343

Less : Approprictions
Corpus transferred to Core Settiement Guarantee Fund- 7,314
{Refer to Note 1.13 & 29}
income transferred to Core Seftiement Guarantee Funds 263
{Refer to Note 119 & 24 .
Exchange Contribution towards Core Settiement Guarantae Fund 6
{Refer to Note 1.19 & 29) ' '
proposed Dividend 4,757
Tax on Proposad Dividend 968

_Sub-Totalr 3,244 \
\lotal [ 11,419 | 10 77__1
— ;

4. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY {N ET)

?in.lakh ‘

\ particulars

As at As at
arch 31, 2015 March 31, ?.01

Deferred Tax Liabifities:
Degraciation

lLess :Deferred Tax Assat
Provision for Leave Encashment

Net Deferred Tax Liahllity

T

131

i

5. OTHERLONG - TERM LIABLLITIES

Z In fakh

S ) Particulars

As at \ As at
Mareh 34, 2015 | March 31, 2014

Payableto Service Providers

5 8
Agcrued Employes Benefits Expense 25 10
Exchange Contribution sowards Core Settlement Guarantee Fund 2,579
{Referto Note 1:19 & 29) }
Tt L 2,609 | 18 |
i 1 = ™




. &.TRADE PAYVABLES

) % inlakh
particulars o Asat \ As at J

March 31, 2015 Wiarch 31, 2044

pavable to Service Providers : . . 182 o oAs4
Payable to Holding Company ' 2,108 -
Accrued Employee Banefits Expansa 32 82
Jrotal _ - 2,382 | . 266 |
. [ m— — 1
7, OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES ' ' : '
. o ‘ ' _ ' % In Jakh
‘ . . As at As at
r - Particulars March 31,2045 | March 31, 2014
Own - e .
Statutory Remittances : 20 14
Others ) : ' . . .
N - 20 14
Earmarked ’ '
BSE (Refer to Note No. 25}
Deposit from Clearing Banks of BSE 1,000 .
Deposlt from Members cf B3E - 1,158 -
Deposit from BSE ) ‘ 250 -
Others tiabilities of BSE : _ 323 : -
‘ ' ' 2,781\ .
USE . : : : :

_ Deposit from Clearing Banks of USE ' - 2,500
Depaslt from Merbers of USE ' ' . 1,88%
Denasit fram USE - 250

- Others Liabilities of USE - - 261

. - 4,896

pefaulters ‘

Defaulters Liabilities , 343 o 123

‘Clearing and Settlement :

Deposit frem Clearing Banks ‘ : . © 13,801 13,801 %
Deposit and Margins from Members ' ' ' 21,156 36,900
Settlernent Obligation Payable ) 30,362 36,458
Others 144 208
- ) 5,463 \ a‘:,afﬂ
Total ' , (T 68,557 | 52,400
- T L. L N .
8, SHORT TERM PROVISIONS
’ . % in lakh
- ’ Asat 1 As at
Particutars \ March 31, 2015 \ March 31, 2014J‘
-\provisten for Employee Benefits ‘
- provision for Compensated Absences 32 10

Oth er Provision . o . .

provision for Income Tax ' ‘ ' . g
* (netof advance as at March 31, 2014 % 1,445 lakhs) :
Proposed Dividend 1 4,157 2,564
Tagen Proposed Dividend ) 968 436
Total | 5,757 | 3,015
| L




9, FIXED ASSETS

* Notas: Opaning Balan

ce and deprediation includes amounts less than Rs. 50,000/-

W

- Fin Lakh
Gross Block Accurnutated depreclation and MNet Carrying Valus
arnoertisation
particulars * Asat Additions As at As at Depretiation/ As at Asat Asat
. Apr{1,2014 . Mar 31, 2015! Apr 01, 2044 Armortisation tviar 31, 20151 Mar 33, 2015 Mar 31, 2014
. for the year ’
Tangible Assets :
Computer Equipment * 14 i1 23] 9 9 16 14
{Previous Year) - {14 {14} - - - {14) B
Motor Vehicles 12 - 12 - 7 7t 5 12
(Pravious Year) - {12) {12) - - 12} -
Offica Equipment ™ - - - - - - - .
(Previous Year}
intangible Assets:
Software 196 | 85 292 29 T8t 110 482 167
- {Previous Year) N (189) (1986) (2 zn {29) {167 - (s}
Total 222 107 323 29 97 | 126 203 | 193
Brevious finangial year | {7 {215} (222} {2} {27} 129) {193)] (5}

gt
o]



10, NOM-CURRENT INVESTMENTS

- E 2 in lakh
' Particulars As at Bs at
Mareh 31,2015 | March 21, 2014

Investrent in Bonds (At cost)
Own

Quoted (Non - trade)
Earmarked

Core Settlemant Guarantee Fund
Quoted (Non - tradg)

Clearing and Settlement -
Quoted {Non - trade]

Total

Book Value of Quoted Investrment
Market Yalue of Quoted Invastment

25,228, 21,093
1,385 r
4,559 5,957

31,172 | 27,050 |

31,172 27,050
33,033 27,150

Script-wise Details of Non - Current investments

( particulars

Investment in Bands
Qwn

Power Finance Corperation 8,20% 61
February 2022

Indian Railway Financial Corporation 8.23 %
18 February 2024

Power Finance Gorporation Ltd. 8.35% 35
May 2016

indlan Railway Finance Corparation Ltd.
8.00% 23 February 2022

Natienal Highway Authority of India 8.27%
05 February 2024

National Highway Authority of ndia 8. 20%
25 January 2022

Earmarked
Core Settlement Guarantee Fund

N atianal Highway Authority of indla 8.27%
05 February 2024

cleating and Settlement

N ationa! Highway Autharity of |ndla 8.27%
05 February 2024 .

|ndian Railway Financial Corporation 8,23 %
18 Fehruary 2024

Rural Electrification Corporation 7.93% 27
March 2022

power Finance Corparatnon 11d. 8.35% 15
May 2016

power Finance Corporat;on 8.20% 01
‘ February 2022

Total

% in lakh
No. of Units \Marc:;:,tzuis\ No. of Units Mart:;;:czold \
1,19,000 16,000 158
10,00,000 10,00,000 10,000
500 ; | )
61,000 61,000 538
8,12,098 10,00,000 10,000
34,000 34,000 337
. 21,003
1,38,502 ) .
43,400 .
2,50,000 " ] .
1,50,000 - .
. 500 | 4,363
) 1,63,600 1,089
{ 5,957
B 27,050
— ;




11 LOMG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES:

2 in ldkh
-Particulars As at ‘ As at
March 3%, 2015 | March 31, 2014
Unsecured - {consl;iered good]- )
Deposit with Public Bodies and Others ) 5 .
~ Income Tax-Paid In Advance - : 841 211
_ (net of provisions % 2,345 lakh, {As at March 31, 2014 T 1,368 lakh}}

Advance to Staff y 10 11
Prepald Expenses . 2 4
Total 858 226 |

13 i}
12. OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS
% In takh
{ ' Particulars As at As at
: March 31, 2035 _| Mareh 31, 2014
Others
Gratuity Asset {net) - 3
Tétai . I—_ - 3;‘:
| S—— —
13, CURRENT INVESTMENTS
% In lakh
Partieulars As at As at
. March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
[CURRENT (NVESTMENTS (At Yower of cost or falr value) ' S
mvastment in Certificates of Peposit
Qwn
Investment In Certificates of Deposit (Queted) 12,983 14,995
Earmarked
Clearing and Settlément:
Investrmient in Certificates of Deposit {Quotad) ; 4,993 -
- Subtotal {A) 1 T 17,9761 . 14,595 |
tnvestrmentin Unlts of Mutual Funds
Owin ’ ; '
Units of Dividend Oriented Liquid Schames of Mutual Funds {Quoted} - 3,651
Subtotal (B) [ P 3,651 |
Earmarked ) r
Clearing and Settlement:
© Units of Dlvidend Orlented Liquid schemes of Mutual Funds {Quoted) - 23,400
BSE {Refer to Note No.25) .~ ' ,
U nits of Dividend Oriented Liquid Schemes of Mutual Funds {Quoted) 1 -
U pits of Growth Oriented Liquid Schemes of Mutual Funds {Quoted) 425 -
USE- ‘ : ,
U nits ot Dividend Orlented Liquld schemes of Mutual Funds {Quoted) - 600
U nits ot Growth Orlented Liguid Schemes of Mutual Funds {Quoted) = 450
Core Seitiement.Guarantee Fund: o .
U nits of Dividend Orlented Uguid Schemes of Mutual Funds (Quqted) 5,714 191
) . Subtotal (C) 6,140 24,641
Tot gl (A+8+C) ' i 24,116 43,287
Agezregate Cost of Mutual Funds 16,140 28,292
NAWof Mutual Funds | 6,204 28,317 |
Agiyega-te Cost of Certificates of Deposit 17,976 14,995 L
Ma ket Walue of Certificates of Depasit i 17,978 | 14996




© Script-wise Details of Current Investmants

. L Particubars

March 31, 2015

. - . Z In lakh
\ No. of Units \ As at ‘ No. of Upits °

March 31, 2014

Cartificates of Daposit (At cost)
Own o
8ank of India-06 Apr 2015
Indusind Bank-06 Apr 2015
Canara Bank CB 02-April-2014

5,000

4,998

punjab National Bank CD 02-April-2014 - 10,000 9,957}

Earmarked ) ' ‘

Clearing and Settlement:

South Indian Bank 06 Apr 2015 3,000 -

(Cicl Bank Limited €D 06-Apr-20153 600

Axis Bank 06 Apr 2015 1,400 .-
Subtotal {A) ] 14,995

Mutual Funds

Own .

Axis Liquid Fund - Direct DD - 47,584 430

Religare Invesco Liquid Fund - Bir - Dy Div 3,156,860 3,171
Subtotal {8} 3,651 |

Earmarked ’

Clearing and Settiement:

Axis Liquid Fund - Direct DDR 3,52,260 3,523

Birla Sun Life Dynamic Bond Fund - Ret Quly - 99,26,997 1,126

Religare Invesco Liguld Fund - Dir - Dly Div 2,178,477 3,787

Rettance Liquid Fund - TP - Dir - Dty Div ' 5,23,845 8,008

Kotak Uguld Scheme - Plan A - Dir - Dly Div 3,27,468 4,005

ICIC] Prudential Money Market Fund Dir Dly ‘

- Div ' 40,02,097 4004
BSE: _ - '
ICIC! Prudentlai Liquid - Dir Dly Div 825 - -
KDEC Uquid Fund - DIr - Growth 17,71,700 - -
USE: '

Tempieton India TMA - Dir - Dly Div 59,969 €00

. Bareda Ploneer Grawth Fund 2,50,000 25
+ DFC Liquid Fund - Dir - Growth 17,71,700 425
Core Settlernent Guarantae Funds
|CIC) Prudential Liquld - Div Ply Div 57,11,008 1,590,350 1911

24,694
Less: Provision for Diminution of
Jrvestmertts : 53
Subtotal {C) 24,641 |
- ' i
Grand Total {A+B+C) 43,287 |




14, TRADE RECEIVABLES

< 1n lakh
Particulars . As at As at
‘ March 31, 2015 March 314, 2014
Ouistanding for a perlod exceeding shx maonths {from the date they became dug
for payment) . o
secured and Considerad Good 1 1
Unsecured, Considered Good - -
Other Receivable
Secured dnd Considered Good - 3
Unsecured, considered good 29 22
Holding Company 62
Total 30 | 83 |
15, CASH AND BAMK BALANCES :
~ ZInlakh
particulars As at Asat

Cash on hand

Balances with banks
in Current accounts

March 21, 2015 | March 31, 2014

Own 84 . 16
Eargarked _ ‘
Cleating and Settlement 15,526 11,045
BSE |Referto Note No. 25) 93 -
USE - 231
SGF 6i2
Defaulters L2 -
In Deposit accounts
Coown . ‘ 3,122 7,540 |
Earmarked
Clearing and Settiemant 52,168 . 48,870
BSE {Refer to Note Na. 25) 2,213 . -
UsE . - 3,615
Defaulters 341 123
SGF 2,933 368
Totsl P 67,094 | 69,908
MNotes:
- Balances In Daposits with Banks includes'® 15

maturity of more than 12 months {including Earmarked).

- Balances In Deposits with Banks of 17,

draft,

5 Lakh (As at March 31, 2014 X 2,207 takhi, which have an remaining

999 Lakh {As at March 31, 2014 % 16,999 Lakh), ate pledged against bank over

o

LA



16. SHORT-TERM LOANS AIND ADVAMCES

= in lakh
Particulars: As at As at
. - tarch 31, 2015 | March 31,2014
Unsacured - {consldared good}
Balances with government authorities:
. Cenvat Credft Recelvable - - 56
Prepaid Expenses 195 224
i Advance to Staff 2 2
Total [ 197 242}
| 1
17. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS. .
. % In lakh
As at Asat
- vt
Particulars March 31,2015 | March 31, 2014 }
Accrued interest :
Fixed daposits .
Qwn 1 256
Earmarked :
Clearing and Settlement 111 -
SGF _ - 3
Investrments - Bonds
Own 938 532
Earmarked
Clearing and Settlement 518 -
SGF 108 -
) Others Recoverable from Members 785 -
ITotal § 2,461, | 341

"




18. REVENUE FROM QPERATIONS

% in lakh
‘-' o For the Year Ended | For the Year Ended
Particulars :
' Mar 31, 2015 far 31, 2014
Sale of services
|A. Own Fund .
Clearing and Settlement Services 1,613 708
Auction Fees . 100 60
Other Operating Revenue 51 32
B. Earmarked Fund - SGF
Other Operating Revenue 9 13
Total 1,773 813
19, REVENUE FROM INVESTMENTS AND DEPOSITS
' . . % in lakh
particulars For the Year Ended | For the Year Ended
: Mar 31, 2015 Mar 31, 2014
A, Qwn Fund
Income From Bends (Long term mvestments) 2,219 2,220
Income From Ceriificates of Deposit T
{Current investments} ' 15 163
Profiton Sale / Redemption of Mutual Funds '
(Current investments) 1 -
Profiton Sale / Redemption of Bonds
(Current investments) - 109
Dividend From Mutual Funds {Current Investments) 1,456 1,71t
Others Interest income - 131
interest income from deposits , 3,270 - 3,931 |
o ) Sub-Total 6,961 8,265
B. Clearing and Settlement Fund ‘
income Erom Bonds (Long term investments) 165 .
income From Certificates of Depaosit
{Current Investments) 1 -
profit on Sale / Redemption of Mutual Funds '
{Current investments} 5 -
Dividend From Mutual Funds .
(Current investments} 1,069 -
Interest income from deposits 1,299 -
Less : payable to BSE (Refer note 30) {2,539) N
Sub-Total - .
 C.Fa rmarked Fund - SGF
(ncome From Bonds {Long term mvestments) 156 -
Dividend From Mutual Funds {Current investmants) 34 9
Int erast Income from depaosits ' : 98 22
Sub-Total 288 31
Total _ 7,249 8,296 |
- —

2



20. OTHER INCOME

% in lakh
seul Ear the Year Ended | Forthe Year Ended
Farilculars Mar 31, 2015 Mar 31, 2014
interest Income ‘on IT Refund -
Miscallaneous income 1
Total 19 | 1|
. L : .}
71. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSES
i . - 2 1n lakh

particulars

For the Year Ended | For the Year Ended

Total

Mar 31, 2015 Mar 31, 2014
Salaries, Allowances and Bonus 301 305
Contribution ta Provident and Other Funds 18 3
Provision for Compensated Absen_ce 25 3

il 434 | 316 |
' b 1 1
27. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES .
. £ In lakh
el For the Year Ended | For the Yeat Ended |
Particuiars Mar 31, 2015 Miar 31,2014

Amortisation of Preliminary Expenses
Auditors' Remuneration
Clearing House Charges

Computer Technology Related Expenses |

Directors' Sitting Fees

Electricity Charges

Insurance

Legal Fees

Loss on Sale / Redempticn of Mutual Funds
{current investments)

personnel Deputation Cost

professional Fees

Property Tax Expenses

Rent
Service Tax Expense

Travelling Expenses
Committee Meeting Sitting Fees
Miscellaneous Expenses

Total

Contribution to Corporate Sacial Responsibiiity

Provision in Diminution of Current mvestment

stamp Duty, Registration Charges & Regulatory Fees




Notes: % In fakh|
Particulars Forthe Year Ended | For tbe Year Ended
ar Mar 31, 2015 Miar 31, 2014 .
Auditors' Remuneration Includes:
Audit Fees 3 7
Tax Audit Fees 1 1
Total 4 ]

f;}_:é



93, There are no contingent liabilities as at M
Estimated amount of cantract remaining
provided forX25 lakh as at March 31, 2015

24, As g:;er the definitions of
Arcounting Standard — 17
opinion that as the
settlement activities an
business segment nor more th
following disclosure is made,

"husiness segment’ and ‘geograph'ica\ Segm

(AS-17) “Segment Repor't‘mg"’ the Mana
Company’s operations comprise on
d the activities incidental thereto, there

arch 31, 2015 (As at March 31, 2014 - M.

to be executed on cepital account and not
(As at March 31, 2014~ Ni)

ent’, contained in
, gement is of the
ty facilitating ciearing and
< neither more than one

an one reportable geographical segment and therefore

: (% In Lakh)
i For the year For the year J
particulars ended ended
, March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
YSegment Revenue -
5 Clearing and Settlerent Activity

r(a) | Operations

r(b) l Related Activities (Treasury)

‘_Total

Less @ inter Segment Revenue

o — %
1 1564 | 5,205
l 4,458 | 3,892 |
) 9,022 | 9,097
| ] -

Total Segment Revenue \\ 9,022 \\ 9,093
| Segment Results | | '
mzaring and Seftlement Activity | | ‘
\;(a) | Operations | 2,958 | 3,792
() | Related Activities (Treasury) | 4,432 | © 3,875 |
ﬁotal Segment Results ! 7,390 | 7,667 \
{ Add : Unallocated theame l 19 | 1_\ '
rl.ess : Unallocated Expenses | 170 | ' 149J
| Less : Extraordinary ttem | -1 -
UProfit hefore taxation | 7239 - 7,519 |
. | Less ; Provision for taxation \ T 896 1,470
[ Profit for the year \ 6,343 | T 5,049 |
. ’ (X in Lakh)
S As at As at
Fa.mw‘a“ \ March 31, 2015 \ \iarch 31, 2014
\_Segment Assets - ‘ l
. Eiearing and Settlement Activity \ . ; \
(a) | Segment Activity = Qpération Y 81,610 | 93,555
. (b \ Segment Activity - Related Activity ) \ 43,686 _ 438,117
(Treasury)
\ Total Segment Assels l : 125,296
f Unallocated Assets ) \ '
ﬁtal Assets |

126,137 141,883

Wt



Particulars

As at
March 31, 2015

Asat

Segment Liabilities

March 31, 2014

Clearing and Settlement Activity

(a) | Segment Activity — Operation 73,580 92,694
“Total Segment Liabilities 73,580 92,694

Unallocated Liahilities 5,738 3,017
| Total Liabilities 79,318 95,711 |

26,

25. In terms of the Scheme of Amalgamation (“the Scheme”), United Stock Exchange of India

Limited (USE) has been merged with BSE Ltd {BSE). The said schemne of amalgamation filed

by BSE has been approved by Hon'ble High Court of Bombay vide there order dated May

14, 2015, with the appointed date of April 01, 2014, Accordingly all assets and iiabilities

as at March 31, 2015 held by the Company on behatf of USE are shown as held on behalf

of BSE and corresponding all transaction entered by the Company during the financial
year 2014-15 with USE are disclosed as related party transactions with BSE.

As per the Accounting Standard-18 “Related Party Disclosures” the related parties of the
entity are as follows: ' :

{a} BSE Lid {Holding Company):

‘ % in Lakh
particulars For the year ended | Forthe year ended
' March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
INCOME , B
Clearing and Settlernent Charges \ 1,613 |~ 528 |
Income on Clearing and Settlement -2,539 \ ' - k
Fund payable to BSE
EXPENDITURE , _ |
Personnel Deputation Cost 50 100
Rent’ ‘ 38 . 38
Computer  Technology  Related 166 554
-| Expenses 7 o
[ Electricity Charges 7 5
| Property Tax 3 7
\_Others Expenses 4] 4

Particulars

[ As at March 31, 2015 | As atMarch 31, 2014 |

‘ASSETS
FIXED ASSETS / CWIP
_Software - 147
Capital Work in Progress - ' 2
OTHER ASSETS
Prepaid Expenses 2 : 4
Assets held on behalf of BSE (refer hote 2,732 -
25) ' N

wp
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rPart:cutars ] As at March 31, 2015 | As at March 31, 2014 \

CLUABILITY \ \ ]
“Liability held on behalf of BSE refer\ 2,731\ : 4\
note 25), : S

\Eceivable {net) | - | : o 6%
payable {net) l 2108| -

(b) Marketplace Technologies Private Limited (Fellow Subsidiary):

.

. Z jn Lakh
Farticu!ars \ For the year ended | For the year ended
) March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
| EXPENDITURE . e
| Computer Technology Expenses | 336 | 62
| Particulars - ['As at March 31, 2015 | As at March 31,2014 |
| ASSETS - ]
| FIXED ASSETS / CWIP |
| Software ' | 91 LA
[ Capltal Work in Progress - l\ 2 \ ) : 2
\ Payable . 77| 66
{¢) Central Depository Services (lndaa‘j Limited (Fellow Subsldaar\;) |
. % in Lakh
{ Particulars ' For the year ended | Fortheyear ended j
) o March 21, 2015 March 31, 2014
| EXPENDITURE . :
| Adrninistrative & Other Expenses | 21 1]
| Particulars | As at March 31, 2015 | As at March 31, 20144!
| ASSETS , - ]
| Deposits (Asset) \ 5| -\
(Prepaid Expenses | 2 \ o - \
(d) BOI Sharehotding Limited (Fellow Joint Venture): -
- L % in Lakh
Barticulars B For the year ended | For the year ended
' March 31, 2015 . March 31, 2014
[ EXPENDITURE . =
| Clearing House Service Charges \ 47 . 120
| Registration Charges . SR -2
l Administrative & Other Expenses \ 1 : L]
[ particulars [ s at March 31, 2015 | As at March 31,2014 |
| uaBTY 3 -
l payable ‘ l 3l , 10 l

Vil



{e) Key Management Personnel (KMP)

\ Managing Director & CEQ {Fram September 2013}

Shri Tushar Arﬁba’ni “TWhole time Director {From November 2012 up to October
2013).and Chief Opérating Officer

) Emt. Manisha Thakur | Company Secretary

Transactions with Key Management Personnel

% in Lakh
\ Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended J
- March 31,2015 Wiarch 31, 2014
| EXPENDITURE l

FSaIaries, Allowahces and Bonus
b Shri K. Kumar '

|
|

60 28
[?hri Tushar Ambani - : 24
| Smt. Manisha Thakur . 18 5 |

27. Earnings per Share:

Particulars : \ For the year ended | For thg year ended 1
: Mateh 31,2015 | March 31, 2014
l ]
Profit after tax (X in lakh} | 6,243 ] 6,049
Less: Appropriations™ (net of tax) (X in 263 \ T 37
lakh) ' '
Tprofit  attributable  to  Equity |- | . 6,080 \ , ' 6,012}
shareholders (R in fakh) .

Welghted average number - of Equity 3,54,00,00,000
shares used in computing Basic and
Diluted earnings per share (Nos.)

3,54,00,00,000

Face value of equity shares (X) 1l 1!
| Basicand Diluted earnings per share =) 017} 0.17 |
28, Expenditure In Foraign Currency:
. : ) Zin Lakh'
Partict;:lars For the year ended \ For the year ended J
) . March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
| Software Expenses [ 23 |- .22
[ Travel Expenses L 13 1

1

Name ~ [ Relation ' :
Shri K. umar,

Fo
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79, The Securities Contracts (Regulation) (SECC)
reguires every recognised stock exchange to cre
profits every year to 3 fund to guaran

. corporation(s) which clears and settles trades executed on't
has sought certain clarifications/guiding principles
sourcing including transfer of profits by stack exchan
and the methodology to be adopte

from SEBLIn the matter, no transfer of profi
as at March 31, 2015,

" Further as mentioned in note ro. 1.19, CC
segment of each Recognised SE to guara
raspective segment of the SE. Accordingly, an amou
and Clearing Corporatian (iCCL) during the year as follows:

Regulations, 2012 datad june 20, 2012
dit twenty five percent of its annual
tee settiement of trades of the recognised clearing
hat stock exchange. BSE Lid
frorm SEBI regarding the norms for
ges to the ahove tnentionad fund
d. Pending recelpt of clarifications/guiding principies
ts has been recorded in the books of account

shall have a fund called Core SGF for each
ntee the settlement of tradés executed In
At contributed by recognised SE {BSE)

Zin Lakh
Sr. | Particulars Recognised | Clearlng Total
-1 Me. ' SE (BSE) Corporation
_ - - (cC)
| 1. | Opening Balance \ R 563 | 563
| 2. | Add : Contribution/transferred during the year | 2,565 | 7,283 | 9,848 |
| 3. | Add : Income on Investment - L 14| -1 14 |
l 4. | Add: Penalties received from members l - \ 56 | 66
5. | Add: Amount Appropriated from Statement \ \
of Profit & Loss - . ‘
17 Contribution by Members ‘ | - gl 49&
‘_ \ Income from Investments . \ - \ 281 \ 281
[ Less ; Taxes \ - \ -27 \ - =27 \
| i Sub-Total | - 263 | 263 |
\ \ | \ o
| Total Core SGF i 2,579 | 8175| 10,754 |

30, As per the earlier terms of cost & revenue
settlement income has been recognised
earned by BSE. The said agreement was exp
the peried upto Mar 31, 2017. Aspert
income to be recognised as ‘cost plus

~included all operational cost). Consi
activities undertaken by ICCL primari

“trading platform of BSE and in the light of renew
1CCL have agreed to pay a sum of amount which will be equal to the income

. investment of marging, collaterval and de
in pursuant to the same amount pa
BSE Limited for the year ended Mar

"

sharing agreement with BSE, the clearing and
by company as 20% on transactioh charges
ired on Sep 30, 2014 and further renewed for
he renewed agreement the clearing and settlement
mark-up method i.e. cost plus 20% mark-up (Cost
dering the same and the fact that the business
ly derived out of transactions executed on the
ed agreement between {CCL and BSE,

generated on
posits placed by the members and clearing banks.
yable of % 2,539 lakh has been paid by Company

31, 2015 (Previous year ended Mar 31, 2014 X Nil).

1o .



31. Disciosure as required under Accounting Standard - 15 on “Employee Benefits” is as
under: '

Defined Benefit Plan — Gratuity:

Period of accounting C As at As at

March 31, 2015 | March 31, 2014 |

i | Summary of Membership Data

—r
e

Number of Employees (Nos.) : ) 33 23
Total Monthly Salary (X in Lakhs) 8
Average Age {Nos.) 37 39 |
\ Average Past Service {Nos.) ' 7 k] [
- Zin Lakh
I | Assumptions as at ' Asat As at
- : March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014 j
Martality pyblished ratas under the Indian Assured
.. Livas Mortality (2006-08) Uit table
| Discount Rate 7.95% | - 9.20%
Rate of increase in compensation : 7.00% l 7.00%
f Rate of return (expected) on plan assets 8.50% | 8.50%
| Withdrawal rate l ]
[ 1211044 years - 2.50% _ 2.50%
| 1451059 years -  1.00% 1.00% |
Amount to be recognised in the Balance Sheet and Movement in net (liability)/assets:
: % in Lakh
Fl Particulats ' As at , As at
March 31, 2015 March 31, 2014
‘ Present Vatue of Funded Obligations . _| 720 60 |
i Fair Value of Plan Assets { 72 63 |
[ | Net Assets/{Liability) | - 3]
Expenses Recognized In Statement of Profit.and Loss
' - % in Lakh
v | Particulars Far the year For the year
' Ended March 31, | Ended March.31,
, _ 2015 2014
f Current Service Cost : | , 3 3
I Vinterest on Defined Benefit Obligations | 6 5 )
\f “Expected Return on Pian Assets I (5) (5}
| NetActuariatlosses / (Gains)-Recognised 4 \ 3
during the year
Total included in “Employee Benefit ' 8 \ - x
. | Expense” : :
Actual Return on Plan Assets 5] . 4]




v

o,

I

‘Experience Adjustment

Reconciliation of Benafit Obligation

: ' % in Lakh
v | Particulars '

As at March 31, \ As at March 31,
2015 2014 °
| Opening Defined Benefit Obligation P 59| 55
r \ Current Service Cost \ 3 \ ':&_l
F | Interest Cost . l 3 %
' | Actuarial Loss / (Gain) l , 4| 4
[ | Benefits Paid l . - -
U Clasing Defined Benef'.t Obligation \ 72 | " 59 |
Reconciliation of Falr Value of Plan Assets .
' - Z In Lakh
F! Particulars ' As at March-31, \ As at March 32,
. 2015 2014
\ \ Opening Fair Value of Plan Assets |- 63 \ 59_\
| | Expected Return on Plan Assets Bl ] 5|
| | Actuarial Gain / {Less) | - | (1}
| Contributions by Employer ! 4 -
| Benefits Paid | - -
[ [ Closing Fair Value of Plan Assets | 72 63 |

Comnosition of Plan Assets

K Government of India Securities

Particulars . ‘\ As athafch 31, \ As at Martﬁ‘Si,
: 2015 ) 2014
. | . . 0% 0%
L \ Corporate Bonds | ) 0% | 0%
I | special Deposit Schermes ' | 0% | 0%
‘ \ Equity Shares of Listed Companies | 0% | 0%
r \ Property \ 0% \ 0%
F | Insurer Merger Funds | 92% 1 - 98% l
| | Others l 8% . 2% |

: . - Zin Lakh
Vili | Particulars As at As at As at As at As at
. : Mar 31, | Mar31, | Mar3l, war3i, | Fab 24,

. 2015 2014 2013 2012 2012

[ \ Defined Benefit \ n \ 60 56 \ 52 \ ‘ 54J

Obligations | .
| Plan Assets \ 72| 63 59 | G-
[ | surplus/ (Deficit) \ -\ 3l 3 l (523 | (Eﬂ]

Co Y
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[ vill | particutars ) Asat As at As at Asat As at
' Mar 31, | Mar3l, | Mar31, | Mar3l, Fab 24,
2015 2014 2013 2012 2012

Experience (4) 3 41, . -
Adjustments on Plan ‘ ‘
Liabilities -
Experience . - {3 - 3 - -
Adjustments on Plan
Assets

Qther Details:

The estimates of future salary increase consldered in the actuarial valuation, take into
account inflation, seniority, prometion and other relevant factors such as supply and

dernand in the em_p_toyment rharkei_:. The above infarmation is certified by the actuary and
relled upon by the Auditors. '

Definad Contrilbution Plan:

Amount recognised as an expense and i

and Other Eunds” of Statemnent of Profit and Loss R 10 Lakh (For the year ended March 31,
2014 28 Lakh). - - o . :

32, Previous year’s" fizures have been regrouped / reclassified wherever necessary to
correspond with the current year’s classification / disclosure.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors / ME
{
) U,

K. Kuar | G. Sethu

Managing Director & CEO Director
‘ . | C

"~ Manisha Thakﬁr' . q;6 ‘.

Company Secretary

Murnbai, May 15, 2015
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